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September 17, 2002

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council,
And Citizens of the City of Denham Springs

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of each
fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards bya
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the

comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Denham Springs for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2002,

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Denham
Springs. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City of Denham Springs has established a comprehensive internal control framework
that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the City of Denham Springs’ financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Denham
Springs” comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement, As management,

we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all
material respects. | |

Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants has audited the City of Denham
Springs’ financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the City of Denham Springs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, are free of
materlal misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded based on the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
ungualified opinion that the City of Denham Springs’ financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2002, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

POST OFFICE BOX 1629
DENHAM SPRINGS, LOUISIANA 70727-1629
225-665-8121
FAX 225-667-1581




Duripg the current fiscal year, the City was not required to undergo a single audit in conformance with the
provisions of the revised Single Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to

the auditor’s report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, is included in a
separately issued report and is available upon request.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany

the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter

of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of
Denham Springs’ MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

- The City of Denham Springs, incorporated in 1903, is located on the eastern side of Livingston Parish and

18 adjacent to East Baton Rouge Parish, which contains the capital city of Baton Rouge and is a major
industrial area. The City of Denham Springs currently occupies a land area of 6.12 square miles and serves
a population of 8,883. The City of Denham Springs is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and
personal properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its

corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing
council.

The City of Denham Springs has operated under the mayor-board of aldermen (city council) form of
government since 1903. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council
consisting of five council members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, and appointing committees, The mayor is responsible for carrying out the
policies and ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
government, and for appointing, with the approval of the city council, the heads of the various departments.

The mayor and the city council are elected at large. The mayor and the five council members serve four-
year terms.

The City of Denham Springs provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection,
maintenance of streets and drainage, animal control, cemetery, general administrative services, planning

and zoning, building inspection, main street program, community arts program, and health services, gas
services, water services, sewer services, recycling, and solid waste disposal.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Denham Springs’ financial planning and control.
All agencies of the City of Denham Springs are required to submit requests for appropriation to the city
treasurer. The city treasurer uses these requests as the starting pomt for developing a proposed budget.
The city treasurer then presents this proposed budget to the city council for review, The city council is

required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no later than |

June 30, the close of the City of Denham Springs’ fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by
fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police). Department heads may make transfers of
approptiations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require
the special approval of the governing council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for
each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the
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general fund, this comparison is presented on pages 26 - 36 as part of the ﬁnahcial statements of the
governmental funds. For governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual
budgets, this comparison 1s presented in the nonmajor governmental fund subsection of this report, which

starts on page 82. The only nonmajor governmental fund annual appropriated budget is the Capital
Projects Fund.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from
the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Denham Springs operates.

Local economy. The City of Denham Springs currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and
local indicators point to continued stability. The region has a varied industrial base that adds to the relative
stability of the unemployment rate ;. Major industrial areas located within close proximity include the
petrochemical manufacturing plants and the companies supported by these plants such as suppliers,
contractors, professionals and financial institutions. Add to this the state governmental job availability in
the surrounding areas of Baton Rouge, the state capital for the State of Louisiana, and the businesses
supported directly and indirectly. Located within the City of Denham Springs are several financial
institutions, pharmacies, varied retail outlets, retail discount stores, and restaurant and fast food chains.
Under development is a “power strip mall” to be anchored by a new Home Depot building and hardware
store in conjunction with a new Chili’s Restaurant, a new International House of Pancakes (IHOP’S), and
several unannounced commercial businesses. The City of Denham Springs is excited about the prospects
for additional development of commercial properties within the City limits. In the planning stage is the

construction of a large supermarket. Other commercial developments are currently eyeing the City of
Denham Springs.

Of concern to the City of Denham Springs, are there enough available commercial properties within the
City of Denham Springs? Presently, the City of Denham Springs has approved the annexing of a tract of
fand on the north side and two tracts of land on the south side of the City. A majority of landowners did
sign petitions to have their properties annexed. The City of Denham Springs has submitted this to the
United States Justice Department for final approval. If approved, this will provide available City property
for commercial growth, and in return the City will provide fire and police protection to these landowners,
An additional benefit to the landowners should be the savings they will receive on their property insurance.

The region (which includes the City of Denham Springs and the surrounding unincorporated area within
Livingston Parish) has an employed labor force of approximately 43,600. The City of Denham Springs’

central business district is expected to mainfain its current 97 petcent occupancy rate with a variety of
stores, specialty shops, and commercial businesses.

Long-term financial planning. The City will continue to improve services and upgrade infrastructure.
Projects planned for the future include:

» Construction of the projected $4.1 million Range Avenue pairing project. Project is to be funded
by the State of Louisiana,

% Overlay and drainage of Rodeo Drive at a projected cost of $400,000.
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» Interchange loops to be constructed at Juban Road and Pete’s Highway. These interchange projects
| are to be funded by Federal and State appropriations.

» Construction of sidewalks along Range Avenue and Hatchell Lane at a projected cost of
approximately $515,000. This is a 95% State funded grant with a 5% City match.

» Explore the possibility of annexing additional areas where construction of federally funded new

interstate interchanges are planned for Juban Road and Pete’s Highway. This area will add
additional commercial growth within the City.

» Continue planning and funding sources being studied for the upgrade of Tate Road from Range
Avenue and an extension of Tate Road to Juban Road. This planned curb and gutter street will
provide access for the planned construction of'a new high school. This will provide a link to the
new interstate interchange and provide new commercial areas. This is within the area under

consideration for annexation. This is a project expected to require a minimum of five years to
complete.

> A larger sewer pump station is being planned for the area bordered by Highpoint Boulevard, Range
Avenue, Rushing Road, and Florida Avenue. The projected cost is $300,000.

» Plan and study the upgrade of the water and sewer systems within the City of Denham Springs, and
the improvement of water lines on Hwy 16 (Pete’s Highway) toward Port Vincent.

Cash management policies and practices. The City of Denham Springs conservatively invested its idle
funds in certificates of deposit through its current fiscal agent, Hibernia National Bank. Investments are
collateralized with securities pledged by the financial mstitution and held in our name by an approved
third-party custodial bank. Procedures followed and securities pledged are in accordance with the Statutes
of the State of Louisiana. The maturities of the certificates of deposit range from 180 days to 365 days,

with an average maturity of 180 days. The average vield on the certificates of deposit was 3.32% for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

Risk management. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 management believes the City is fully
insured for all major risks, such as General Liability, Workmen’s Compensation, Employee and Public
Official Fidelity Bonds, and Fire and Extended Coverage and Flood Insurance. The City maintains no self-
insurance program at June 30, 2002,

Additional information on the City of Denham Springs’ risk management activity can be found in Note 16
of the notes to the financial statements.

Pension and other post employment benefits. Substantially all employees of the City of Denham
Springs are members of the following statewide retirement systems: Municipal Employees Retirement
System of Louisiana (MERS), Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS), or
Firefighters Retirement System of Louisiana. These systems are multiple employer (cost-sharing), public
employee retirement systems (PERS), controlled and administered by separate State appointed board of
trustees. The City of Denham Springs has no obligation in connection with employee benefits offered
through these plans beyond its annual contractual payment to these State Pension Boards

-V1i-




Additional information on the City of Denham Springs’ pension arrangements. and post employment
benefits can be found in Notes 11 and 12 in the notes to the financial statements.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Denham Springs for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. This was the
sixth consecutive year that the City of Denham Springs has received this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement by GFOA, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR. This report satistied both accounting principles generally accepted (GAAP) in
the United States of America, and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for
a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of

Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate. |

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services of

the Administrative Office Staff whose daily efforts result in the proper handling of the City’s financial
affairs and the successful completion of this report.

Appreciation is also expressed to the Mayor and City Council for their support in planning and conducting
the financial affairs of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

City of Denham Snrines

(Jﬂa/www £. d/c?u“

Clarence E. Speed, Jr.
City Treasurer
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September 17, 2002

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable James E. DeLaune, Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Denham Springs, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements

are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic
financial statements based on our audit.

In addition, Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP, acting separately, audited the financial statements of each of
the component units discretely presented in the City of Denham Springs basic financial statements. The

component units audited by us, separately, account for 100% of the assets of the component unit column on
the Statement of Net Assets.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures 1n the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presen-
tation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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The Honorable James E. Del.aune
and Members of the City Council
City of Denham Springs, Louisiana

In our opimion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position ot the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2002, and the results of its

operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the City of Denham Springs adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements -
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments; and Statement No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements - and’ Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local

Governments, as of July 1, 2001, This results in a change in the format and content of the basic financial
statements.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 17,
2002 on our consideration of the City of Denham Springs’ internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 17 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of

management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Qur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying financial information listed in the Table of Contents as Supplementary
Schedules (Schedules 1 through 19) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying financial information listed in the Statistical Section is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements of the City of Denham Springs,

Louisiana. The information has not been audited by us, and accordingly we express no opinion on the
information.

Respectfully submitted,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS




As management of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, we offer readers of this financial statement this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in

conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found on pages iv - viii of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Denham Springs exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal

year by $27,803,138 (net assets). Of this amount, $13,526,848 (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

o The City’s total net assets increased by $221,430.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fond balances of $3,835,961, an increase of $33,717 in comparison with the prior year.

Approximately two-thirds of the total amount, $2,557,137, is available for spending at the City’s
discretion (unveserved fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $2,556,216
or 40 percent of total general fund expenditures.

» The City’s total debt decreased by $226,627 (21 percent) during the current fiscal year. The key
- factor in this decrease is the normal annual debt service requirements,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Denham Springs’ basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to

provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Denham Springs’ finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Denham Springs” assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in

net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Denham Springs is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are

reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Denham Springs that
are principally supported by taxes, licenses, permits, fines and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through

user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Denham
Springs include general government, public safety, highways and streets, health, and culture and recreation.
The business-type activities of the City of Denham Springs include a gas and water distribution operation, a

sewer disposal operation, and a contracted solid waste disposal operation. All business-type activities are
included 1n a single Utility Enterprise Fund.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Denham Springs itself (known as
the primary government), but also a legally separate City Court of Denham Springs Ward II and a legally
separate Marshal of City of Denham Springs - Ward II for which the City of Denham Springs is financially

accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund 1s a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Denham Springs, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Denham Springs can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmenial fitnds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govermment-wide financial
statements, 1t 1s useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,

and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The City of Denham Springs maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and 1n the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund which is considered to be a major fund.
Data from the other three governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Denham Springs adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 36 of this report.

- . ——— -
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Proprietary funds. The City of Denham Springs maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Denham Springs uses an enterprise fund to account for
its gas and water distribution operation, sewer disposal operation, and contracted solid waste disposal
operation. [nternal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the City of Denham Springs’ various functions. The City of Denham Springs uses an internal
service fund to account for fuel and maintenance costs for its fleet of vehicles and equipment. Because

these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the enterprise fund
consisting of the gas and water distribution operation, sewer disposal operation, and contracted solid waste
disposal operation, which is considered to be a major fund of the City of Denham Springs. Conversely, the
internal service fund is a single presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 37 - 41 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 42 - 78 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, the combining
statements reterred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately

following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules
can be found on pages 80 - 82 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

In the case of the City of Denham Springs, assets exceeded liabilities by $27,803,138 at the close of the
most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Denham Springs’ net assets (49 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City of Denham Springs uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending Although the City of Denham
Springs’ investment in its capital assets 1s reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources

needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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The following table reflects the Condensed Statement of Net Assets for June 30, 2002. Prior year data is
not presented in the implementation year but will be presented in future years for comparison purposes.

City of Denham Springs
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002
Business
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets:
Current and Other Assets $ 4,188,024 $§ 3,011,982 §$§ 7,200,006
Restricted Assets - 465,000 465,000
Capital Assets 6,560,926 15,788,534 22,349,460
Total Assets 10,748,950 19,265,516 30,014,466
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities | 381,252 076,820 1,358,072
Long-Term Liabilities 237,915 615,341 853,256
Total Liabilities 619,167 1,592,161 2,211,328
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Debt 6,560,926 7,225,602 13,786,528
Restricted 489,762 - 489,762
Unrestricted 3,079,095 10,447,753 13,526,848
Total Net Assets $ 10,129,783 § 17,673,355 § 27,803,138

For more detailed information see Exhibit A-1, the Statement of Net Assets.
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June 30, 2002 Net Assets
Restricted
Assets
2%
Invested m o ,, . |
Capital Assets (B i) Unrestricted
Net Gf Deb-t O e P ‘F:- S;;tﬂ
49% ’

An additional portion of the City of Denham Springs’ net assets (2 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets
($13,526,848) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations 1o citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Denham Springs is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental
and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Restricted net assets reported in connection with the City of Denham Springs’ business-type activities

remained the same as the prior year. The $465,000 represents funds set aside to repay customers deposits
required prior to receiving services.

The City’s net assets increased by $221,430 during the current fiscal year. All of this increase represents
the degree to which increases in ongoing revenues have outstripped similar increases in ongoing expenses.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Denham Springs’ net assets by

$61,108, thereby accounting for 28 percent of the tofal growth m the net assets of the City of Denham
Springs. Key elements of this increase are documented on the following page:




City of Denham Springs
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Governmental — Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues: ) S
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 536,548 § 4,823,164 § 5,359,712
Operating Grants and Contributions 296,013 - 296,013
Capital Grants and Contributions . 47,907 32,935 80,842
General Revenues: |
Sales Taxes 4,193,182 - 4,193,182
Other Taxes 1,322,585 - 1,322,585
Other Grants and Contributions
not Restricted to Specific Programs 204,170 42,739 246,909
Other 03,432 96,520 189,952
Total Revenues 6,693,837 4,995,358 11,689,195
Expenses: _
General Government 1,379,014 - 1,379,014
Public Safety 3,672,912 - 3,672,912
Highways and Streets 1,374,390 . 1,374,390
Health 29,098 - 29,008
Culture and Recreation 77,645 - 77,643
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,545 - 1,545
Payments to Component Units 98,125 - 98,125
(yas - 2,336,007 2,336,007
Water - 867.579 867,579
Sewer - 1,018,507 1,018,507
Sanitation _ - 612,943 612,943
Total Expenses 6,632,729 4,835,036 11,467,765
Increase in Net Assets 61,108 160,322 221,430
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 10,068,675 17,513,033 27,581,708
Net Assets - End of Year 10,129,783 $ 17,673,355 § 27.803,138
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Total revenues from Governmental Activities increased by only §9,718 over the prior vear.

s Sales tax collections increased by $131,236 (3 percent) during the year. Most of this increase is
attributed to retail sales.

e Capital Grants and Contributions increased by $26,332. This increase was because of the start-up
of the Range Road Corridor Project.

e Interest income declined during the current fiscal year by $77,765. This decline was caused
entirely by the reduction in interest rates on invested funds.

o The City received a one-time insurance premium rebate of $95,811 from premiums paid over the
past years.

¢ Fines and Forfeits declined by $16,191.
¢ Law Enforcement Grants declined by $1335,341.
o Othersmall revenue increases and decreases amounted to a total of $14,364 in decreased revenues.

—_———— . --
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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7 Restricted to Specific

Total expenses from Governmental Activities increased by $466,682.

o Total salaries charged to gwemmentél activities mcreased from $3,062,528 to $3,268,749 or an
increase of $206,221. This increase was caused by pay increases and the addition of several

employees.

o Related payroll taxes and empioyee benefits charged to governmental activities increased by

$93,678.

e For the most part, the remainder of the governmental activities expenses paralleled inflation and

ogrowth 1n the demand for services.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Denham Springs’ net assets by
$160,322, accounting for 72 percent of the total growth in the City’s net assets. Key elements of this

increase are as follows.

¢ Operating income from business type activities increased by $128,723 caused mostly by the

increase monitoring of natural gas costs being passed on to consumers.

» Non-operating revenue decreased by $75,160. The majority of the decrease was caused by the

interest rate reduction on invested funds.

11




e —

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business Type Activities

3,000,000 -
2,500,000 -
2,000,000
1,500,000

1,000,600
500,000
0

sanitation

Capital Grants and
Contributions
1%

Other Grants and
Contributions not
Restricted to Specific
Programs
1 %4

Charges for Services [ gl it
050 L

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Denham Springs uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Denham Springs’ governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflow, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Denham Springs’ financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may

serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year. |
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As of the end of the current fiscal vear, the City of Denham Springs’ governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $3,835,961, an increase of $33,717 in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 87% of this total amount ($3,346,199) constrtutes wnreserved fund balance, which 1s
available for spending at the City’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay debt service
($13,321), 2) to generate income to pay for the perpetual care of the municipal cemetery ($476,441).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Denham Springs. Atthe end of the current fiscal
year, total fund balance of the general fund of $2,556,216 was unreserved. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balances and total fund balance to total

fund expenditures. Total fund balance and unreserved fund balance represents 40 percent of total general
fund expenditures.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City of Denham Springs’ general fund decreased by
$268,294. Key factors in this decline are as follows:

e Although sales tax revenues increased by $131,236 total revenues of the general fund only
increased by $25,726. The major decline in general fund revenues was caused by the decrease in
law enforcement grants received over the prior year in the amount of $135,341.

o Total expenditures of the general fund increased by $214,318 over the prior year. Salaries and

related payroll taxes and benefits increased by $299,899 while equipment purchases declined by
$187,126.

e In the current vear, the City transferred $485,700 from the general fund to the City’s Capital
Projects Fund to fund new and existing capital projects.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $14,242, of which $13,321 is reserved for the payment of

debt service. The net decrease in fund balance during the current vear in the debt service fund was
$13,139.

Proprietary funds. The City of Denham Springs’ proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. ~

Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise fund at the end of the year amounted to $10,454,126. The total
growth in net assets for the enterprise fund 1s $166,695. Other factors concerning the enterprise fund have
already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Denham Springs’ business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Major differences between the original budget and the final amended budget of the General Fund are
briefly summarized as tollows:

Revenues:

Total budgeted revenues were increased by $292,382 over the original budget.

13
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Sales tax revenues were increased by $200,000 due to original conservative projections.
Cable franchise tax revenue was increased by $22,339 due to actual amounts collected.
Fines and forfeits revenues were increased by $50,000 due to the oniginal conservative projections.

Fire department grant revenues were increased by $18,900 due to the receipt of a FEMA grant to be
used to purchase a portable “smoke’ house trailer to be used in fire fighter training.

Expenditures:

Total budgeted appropriations were mcreased by $757,186 over the original budgeted appropriation.

Included $416,950 in depreciation expense in the final amended budget.
Increased transfers to the Capital Projects Fund by $185,700 to increase funding of current and
future capital projects.

Included $15,600 in the amended budget for the purchase of a storage building for record retention.
Included $10,650 in the amended budget for cost of annexation.

Included $20.343 in the amended budget for the purchase of a portable “smoke” house trailer to be
used in fire fighting training.

Major differences between the actual results of the general fund and the final amended budget are as
follows:

The City actually collected $93,182 more sales tax than the $4,100,000 budgeted.

The City actually collected $41,791 more occupational licenses that the $300,000 budgeted.
The City received an insurance premium rebate of $95,811 in June 2002 that was not budgeted.
This was due because of premiums paid in previous years.

The City failed to obtain several small law enforcement grants as they had in previous years and
grant revenue was below budget by §143,454.

Although numerous line items in various departments may have exceeded the amended budget for
that line, no departments’ total expenditures exceeded the total departments’ budget, even after

making an adjustment not to include depreciation, except for the Arts Council which exceeded its
budget 0of $27,389 by $4,386 or 16%.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Denham Springs’ investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of June 30, 2002, amounts to $13,786,528 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, machinery and
equipment, roads, highways, and drainage. The total increase in the City of Denham Springs’ investment

in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1 percent (a 1 percent increase for governmental activities
and a 1 percent increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the tollowing:

Pete’s Highway sewer pump station renovation project completed as of fiscal year ended June 30,
2002 at a total project cost of $688,533.

Range Road corridor project is currently in the environmental phase; total project cost as of fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002 had reached $325,941, $252,100 has been reimbursed by grants.

14




e Rodeo Drive overlay and drainage project has commenced; total project cost as of fiscal year ended
June 30, 2002 had reached $93,372.

South Range Avenue sidewalk project engineering for final design services was completed at a cost
0f $4,611 during the current fiscal year. Total preliminary and final design engineering fees paid to
June 30,2002 are $13,833. Subsequent to June 30, 2002, construction of the sidewalks was begun.

Hatchell Lane sidewalk project preliminary design engineering was completed at a cost of $12.716
during the current fiscal year,

(Net of Accurmulated Depreciation)
June 30, 2002

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

Land $ 628,671 $ 159,575 3 788,246
Buildings and Improvements 2,228,365 21,901 2,250,266
(Gas System - 1,084,002 1,084,002
Water System - 3,126,530 3,126,530
Sewer System - 11,003,153 11,003,153
Machinery and BEquipment 1,619,121 393,373 2,012,494
Infrastructure 1,889,395 - 1,889,395
Construction in Progress 195,374 - 195,374

Total $ 6,560,926 $ 15,788,534 $ 22,349,460

Additional information on the City of Denham Springs’ capital assets can be found in note 8 on pages 64 -
67 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Denham Springs had total bonded debt
outstanding of $856,198. Of this amount, $842,877 comprises debt secured solely by utility user charges,

and $13,321 is special assessment debt for which the government is liable in the event of default by the
property owners subject to the assessment. |
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City of Denham Springs
(seneral Obligation and Revenue Bonds
June 30, 2002

(Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Special Assessment Debt
with Governmental Commitment $ 13,321 $ - $ 13,321
Revenue Bond - 842 877 842 877
Total $ 13,321 $ 842,877 $ 856,198

During the current fiscal year, the City of Denham Springs’ total debt decreased by $224,804 (21.6

percent). This resulted because regular debt payments were timely paid. No new debt was issued during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 9 on pages 67 — 70 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

¢ The unemployment rate for the City of Denham Springs is currently 6.0 percent, which is an

tncrease from a rate of 5.4 percent a year ago. This compares favorably to the state’s average
unemployment rate of 6.1 percent and the national average rate of 5.9 percent.

The occupancy rate of the City’s central business district has remained at 97 percent for the past
several years.

e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Denham Springs’ budget for the 2003 fiscal
year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased to $2,556,216. The
City has appropriated $1,052,827 of this amount for spending in the 2003 fiscal year budget. It is intended

that this use of available fund balance will avoid the need to raise taxes or charges during the 2003 fiscal
year. It also will allow continued funding for major capital projects.

The City of Denham Springs’ general fund receives approximately 63% of its revenues from the 1%
general sales and use tax levied by the Cify of Denham Springs. Because of the uncertainties in the

national economy as well as Louisiana’s economy, the City took a conservative approach and actually
budgeted a 4.6% decline in sales tax receipts for the 2003 fiscal year.

Of the $1,052,827 general fund unreserved fund balance being used in the 2003 fiscal year budget,

$601,247 or 57% represents amounts being used for capital projects, while $412,275 or 39% represents
cost of living salary increases along with related benefit increases. The largest projected benefit increase is

in the area of group health insurance where it is anticipated that group insurance will increase by 35% or
$137,457.

16
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Denham Springs’ finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided In this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City
Treasurer, ¢/0 City of Denham Springs, P.O. Box 1629, Denham Springs, Louisiana, 70727-1629.
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Exhibit A-1

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2002
B Primary Government - Component Units
Marshal of
City Court

City Court of of Denham

Governmental  Business-Type Denham Springs Springs

Activities Activitics Total Ward II Ward [}
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,770,990 $ 475,132 $ 2,246,122 $§ 173,594 $ 69,151
Investments 1,510,000 1,913,631 3,423,631 145,000 20,270
Recetvables, Net 149,314 461 860 611,174 3,055 78
Due from Other Governments 748,484 G,645 758,129 - -
Due from Component Unit 5,889 - 5,889 - -
Internal Ralances (20,854) 20,854 - - i}
Inventories 24.201 124,814 149,015 - -
Prepaid Ttems - 6,046 6,046 - -
Restricted Assects: .
[nvestments - 465,000 465,000 - -
Capital Assets: -
Land and Construction in Progress 824,045 159,575 983,620 - .
Other Capital Assets, Net of
Depreciation 5,736,881 15,628,959 21,365,840 41,787 60,848
Total Assets $ 10,748,950  $19,265,516  $30,014466 $ 365436 § 150347
LIABILITTES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses  § 288,626 ¥ 749,866 $ 1,038,492 § 3,772 $ 8,390
Due to Primary Government - - - - 5,889
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 02,626 226,954 319,580 - -
Due in More Than One Year 237,015 615,341 853,256 - -
Total Liabilities 619,167 1,592,161 2,211,328 4,772 14,288
NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt - 6,560,926 7,225,602 13,786,528 41,787 60,848
Restricted for:
Debt Service 13,321 - 13,321 - -
Cemetery Care 476,441 - 476,441 - -
Unrestricted 3,079,095 10,447,753 13,526,848 319,877 _ 75,211
Total Net Assets 10,129,783 17,673,355 27,803,138 361,664 136,059

ey T

Total Liabilities and Net Assets ~_$ 10,748,950 $19,265,516  $30,014466 $ 365436 § 150,347

H

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
19
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions _Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government § 1,379,014 Y - $ 9,657 $ .
Public Safety - 3.672912 501,648 286,156 -
Highways and Streets 1,374,390 13,364 - 44,000
Health 29,098 - - -
Cutture and Recreation 77,645 21,536 200 -
Interest on Special Assessment Certificate
of Indebtedness 1,545 - - 3,907
Payments to Component Units 98,125 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 6,632,729 536,548 296,013 47,907
Business-Type Activities:
Gas 2,336,007 2,636,736 - -
Water % 867,579 1,061,116 - -
Sewer 1,018,507 572,769 - 32,935
Sanitation 612,943 552,543 - -
Total Business Type Activities 4,835,036 4,823,164 - 32,935
Total Primary Government $ 11,467,765  $5,359,712 § 296,013 § 80,842
Component Units: |
City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II $§ 266419 216,464 29,859 -
Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs -
Ward II 333,543 176,271 119,978 -
Total Component Units § 599062 $ 392,735  § 149837 § -
(General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Occupational and Permits
Franchise

Other Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs
Interest Income

Gain on Sale of Asset
Payments from the City of Denham Springs

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Net Assets - End of Year

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Gﬂvernmental
Activities

$ (1,369,357)
(2,885,108)
(1,317,026)

(29,098)
(55,909)

2,362
~(98,125)

(5,752,261)

(5,752,261)

159,204
4,193,182
627,006
536,375
204,170
87,980
5,452

5,813,369

61,108

10,068,675

$ 10,129,783

Exhibit A-2

21

Changes in Net Assets o
Primary Government _____Component Units
City Court of Marshal of City
Business-Type Denham Springs  Court of Denham
_Activities Total Ward II Springs - Ward 11
- $ (1,369,357) S - $ -
- (2,885,108) - -
- (1,317,026) - -
- (29,098) - -
- (55,909) . -
- 2,362 - -
- (98,125) . -
- (5,752,261) - -
300,729 300,729 - -
193,537 193,537 - .
(412,803) (412,803) - ]
60,400y  (60,400) - -
21,063 21,063 - .
21,063 (5,731,198) - -
- - (20,096) -
- - - (37,294)
- - (20,096) (37,294)
- 159,204 - -
- 4,193,182 - -
- 627,006 - -
- 536,375 - -
42,739 246,909 4,183 1,770
96,520 184,500 13,229 1,827
- 5,452 - -
. 1\ & 53,110
139,259 5,952,628 62427 56,707
160,322 221,430 42,331 19,413
17,513,033 _ 27,581,708 319,333 _ 116,646
$ 17,673,355 $ 27,803,138 $ 361,664 $ 136,059
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
~ General Funds Funds
ASSETS —
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1032972 § 693,454 § 1,726,426
Investments, at Cost 900,000 610,000 1,510,000
Receivables:
Ad Valorem Taxes, Net 115 - 115
Special Assessments - 2,693 2,693
Other 131,317 15,085 146,402
Due from Other Funds 2,065 - 2,065
Due from Other Governments 704,484 44,000 748,434
Due from Component Units 5,889 - 5,889
Total Assets $ 2,776,842 3 1,365232 § 4,142,074
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 59,609 § 68,256 § 127,865
Retainages Payable - 12,473 12,473
Payroll Taxes Payable 1,440 - 1,440
Retirement and Group Insurance Payable 2,312 - 2,312
Accrued Salaries and Wages 114,340 - 114,340
Due to Other Funds 28,001 2,065 30,156
Deferred Revenues - 2,693 2,693
Other Liabilities 14,834 - 14,834
Total Liabilities 220,626 85,487 306,113
FUND BALANCES
Fund Balance:
Reserved for Debt Service - 13,321 13,321
Reserved for Cemetery Expenditures - 476,441 476,441
Unreserved:
Designated for Construction - 789,062 789,062
Undesignated 2,556,216 921 2,557,137
Total Fund Balances 2,556,216 1,279,745 3,835,961
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2776842 $§ 1,365,232

Exhibit B-1

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

RECONCITLIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2002

Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental
Activifies in the Statement of Net
Assets are Different Because:

Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities
are not Financial Resources and are not
Reported in the Governmental Funds

Governmental Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Long-Term Liabilities are not Due and
Payable in the Current Period and
Therefore are not Reported in the
Governmental Funds:

1993 Paving Certificates Payable
Compensated Absences Payable

The Motor Pool Internal Service Fund is Used by Management
to Charge the Cost of Vehicle Repairs to Individual
Funds. The Assets and Liabilities of the Internal
Service Fund are Included in Governmental

Activities in the Statement of Net Assets

Motor Pool Internal Service Fund Net Assets
Current Year Net Loss Allocated to Business-Type

Activities
Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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$ 10,395,657

(3,847,039)

(13,321)
(313,567)

65,719

6,373

Exhibit B-2

$ 3,835,961

6.548.618

(326,888)

72,092

$ 10,129,783




CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL ANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Exhibit B-3

Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
~ General Funds Funds
Revenues:
Special Assessments 3 - $ 3,907 $ 3,907
Taxes 4,935,933 - 4,935,933
Licenses and Permits 627,006 “ 627,006
Fines and Forfeits 244,035 - 244 035
911 Service Fees 197,785 - 197,785
Interest 59,518 26,944 86,462
Miscellaneous 335,577 25,936 591 13
Total Revenues 6,599,854 36,387 6,686,241
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government 1,326,810 3,293 1,330,103
Public Safety 3,684,433 - 3,684,433
Highways and Streets 1,184,453 141,218 1,325,671
Health 29,098 - 29,098
Culture and Recreation 77,645 - 77,645
Payments to Component Units 08,125 . 98,125
Capital Outlay:
Highways and Streets - 110,699 110,699
- Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - 13,321 13,321
Interest - 1,545 1,545
Total Expenditures 6,400,564 270,076 6,670,640
Excess (Deficiency) of |
Revenues over Expenditures 199,290 (183,689) 15,601
Other Financing Sources (Uses);
Operating Transfers In - 485,700 485,700
Operating Transfers Out (485,700) - (485,700)
Sale of Assets ~ 18,116 - 18,116
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ~ (467,584) 485700 18,116
Net Change in Fund Balances (268,294) 302,011 33,717
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 2,824,510 977,734 3,802,244
Fund Balances at End of Year - $ 2,556,216 $ 1,279,745 $ 3,835,961

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-4

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds | $ 33,717

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:

Governmental Funds Report Capital Outlays as Expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities, the Cost of Those Assets is Allocated Over
Their Estimated Useful Lives and Reported as Depreciation Expense.

Capital Outlay 561,230
Depreciation Expense (518,377)

42,853

In the Statement of Activities, Only the Gain on the Sale of Capital Assets
is Reported. However, in the Governmental Funds, the Proceeds from
the Sale Increase Financial Resources. Thus, the Change in Net Assets Differs
from the Change in Fund Balance by the Cost of the Capital Assets Sold. (12,665)

The Repayment of Principal on Long-Term Debt Consumes Current
Financial Resources of Governmental Funds Which has no Effect on
Net Assets. 13,321

Some Expenses Reported in the Statement of Activities do not Require the
use of Current Financial Resources and are not Reported as Expenditures
in Governmental Funds.
Increase in Compensated Absences Payable (7,863)

Internal Service Funds are Used by Management to Charge the Costs of
Certain Activities to Individual Funds. The Net Revenue (Expense) of
the Internal Service Funds 1s Reported with Governmental Activities. (8,255)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 61,108

e ——— ]

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-5

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Variance With
Final Budget -
____Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 140,000 § 150,000 § 159204 $ 9,204
Alcoholic Beverage Tax 25,000 25,000 28,634 3,634
Chain Store Tax 16,600 16,600 18,538 1,938
Electrical Franchise Taxes 425,000 425,000 437,017 12,017
Sales Taxes 3,900,000 4,100,000 4,193,182 03,182
Cable TV Franchise Tax 75,000 97,339 97,339 -
Wrecker Franchise Tax 1,600 1,600 2,019 419
4,583,200 4,815,539 4,935,933 120,394
Licenses and Permits:
Occupational Licenses 500,000 500,000 541,791 41,791
Other Permits and Licenses 82,650 84,850 85,215 365
582,650 584,850 627,006 42,156
Fines and Forfeits:
Ward II Court 205,500 255,500 244,035 (11,465)
911 Service Fees 180,000 180,000 197,785 17,785

(CONTINUED)
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Exhibit B-5
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAIL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINU:

41l

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Miscellaneous:

Dog Licenses and Fees 9,000 9,000 - 8,191 (809)

Fire Insurance Commissions 18,000 18,000 22,720 4,720

Insurance Premium Rebate - - 65,811 05,811

Interest Income 80,000 35,000 59,518 4,518
Royalties 30,000 30,000 26,245 (3,755)

Miscellaneous 30,200 31,600 51,637 20,037
LLaw Enforcement Grants 240,000 240,000 96,546 (143,454)

Fire Department Grants - 18,900 18.900 -

Other Grant Revenue 10,200 - 200 200

Road Maintenance Fees 13,360 13,360 13,364 4
Intergovernmental Revenue 180,000 180,000 170,710 (9,290)
Rent Income 100 100 60 (40)

FEMA Disaster Grant - 9,600 9,657 57
Arts Council Revenue 8,700 22,012 21,536 (476)
619,560 627,572 595,095 (32,477)

Total Revenues - $6,170,910  $6,463,461  §6,599,854 § 136,393

-——-—-————-—-—-————-—-——T———'—“—

D)

(CONTINU
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_ Exhibit B-3
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES
IN FUND RALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

28

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final - Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures ) |
General Government:
Genetal Provistons:

- Salaries $ 220944 $ 239944 § 235,078 & 4,866
Aldermen's Per Diem 40,000 40,000 37,000 3,000
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,

and Group Insurance 63,017 63,017 58,515 4.502
Building Improvements - 13,600 14,726 874
Chamber of Commerce 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Contingency 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Depreciation - 42,000 - 42,000
Electricity 20,000 20,000 14,761 3,236
Equipment Purchased - - 9,160 (9,160)
Insurance 19,494 19,494 19,771 (277)
Legal and Professional 75,500 101,575 129,841 (28,266)
Membership Fees and

Educational Training 12,000 20,000 20,472 (472)
Miscellaneous 62,820 64,420 59,687 4,733
Printing, Postage and |

Office Supplies 42,500 42,500 46,232 (3,732)
Rental Equipment 8,000 8,000 4,220 3,780
Repairs and Maintenance 52,000 52,000 59,622 (7,622)
Small Tools and Supplies 9,000 9,000 20,577 (11,577)
Telephone 17,400 17,400 24 658 (7,258)
Travel 35,300 5,300 4.443 857

Total General Provisions 716,975 820,250 768,763 51,487

Cemetery:
Salaries 46,425 46,825 47,355 (530)
Payroll Taxes, Retirement, |
and Group Insurance 12,592 12,592 12,312 280
(CONTINUED)
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Exhibit B-5
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original ~ Final Actual ~ (Unfavorable)
General Government (Continued):
Cemetery (Continued):
Depreciation - 4,000 - 4,000
Equipment Expense 3,500 2,600 572 2,028
Legal and Professional 1,000 1,000 385 615
Repairs and Maintenance 4,600 7.600 4,645 2,955
Insurance 3,860 5,860 5,028 832
Miscellaneous 3,210 3,210 1,836 1,374
Small Tools 1,000 1,500 4411 (2911)
Total Cemetery 78,187 85,187 76,544 8,643
Tax:
Salaries 45,440 45,440 39,770 5,670
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 9,079 9.079 7,676 1,403
Collection Fee 70,000 70,000 68,149 1,851
Depreciation - 1,450 - 1,450
Equipment Expense 800 800 785 15
Insurance 1,143 1,143 1,533 (390)
Legal and Professional 1,350 1,350 489 861
Miscellaneous 2,400 2,400 704 1,696
Printing, Postage and
and Office Supphies 6,500 6,500 7,108 (608)
Small Tools and Supplies 5,200 5,200 3,939 1,261
Tax Roll 1,200 4,700 4,669 31
Total Tax ~ 143,112 148,002 134,822 13,240
(CONTINUED)
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Exhibit B-5
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

e . —— ot —— .

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual _(Unfavorable)
General Government (Continued):
Ward Court:
Group Insurance 5,938 7,258 8,062 (804)
Judge's Salary 26,000 26,000 25,800 200
Judge's Retirement 3,380 3,380 3,354 26
Building Maintenance 7,000 7,000 1,314 5,686
Additional Court Costs 13,500 7.000 2,401 4,599
Depreciation - 15,200 - 15,200
Prosecuting Attorney 12,000 12,000 12,000 -
Total Ward Court 67,818 77,838 52,931 24,907
Planning and Zoning:
Salaries 123,589 123,589 118,924 4,665
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 29,152 29,152 22,216 6,936
Depreciation - 9,000 - 9,000
Equipment Purchased 20,000 18,500 18,219 281
Insurance 10,664 10,664 10,337 327
Legal and Professional 10,000 6,000 7,440 (1,440)
Miscellaneous 11,800 11,900 9,001 2,809
Demolition Expense 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Printing, Postage and
Office Supplies 6,200 7,700 4,567 3,133
Small Tools and Supplies 700 5,000 6,480 (1.480)
Vehicle Expense 3,000 4,600 4,193 407
Total Planning and |
Zoning ____227_,}05 236,105 201,467 34,638
(CONTINUED)
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Exhibit B-5
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Vanance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original __Final ___Actual (Unfavorable)
General Government (Continued):
Public Service Workers:
Salaries 49,758 61,342 60,567 775
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 12,963 14,139 14,633 (494)
Vehicle Expense 7,800 6,500 4,145 2,355
Equipment Repairs 1,000 1,000 38 062
Small Tools and Supplies 2,000 2,000 538 1,462
Depreciation - 4,000 - 4,000
Electricity 3,700 3,700 3,009 691
Insurance 7,008 7,008 6,704 304
Miscellaneous 3,500 4300 2,649 1,651
Total Public Service
Workers 87,729 103,989 92,283 11,706
Total General Government 1,320,926 1,471,431 1,326,810 144,621
Public Safety: |
Animal Control.:
Salaries 35,682 35,682 39,714 (4,032)
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 10,759 10,759 10,365 394
Depreciation - 7,000 - 7,000
Electricity 2,500 2.500 2,808 (308)
Animal Care Expense 5.400 5,400 3,517 1,883
Equipment Expense 3,100 3,000 1,937 1,063
Insurance 3,304 3,304 3,357 (53)
Miscellaneous 8.850 8,950 5,181 3,769
Small Tools and Supplies 4,600 4,600 5,205 (695
Total Animal Control 74,195 81,195 72,174 9,021
(CONTINUED)




Exhibit B-3
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINU ED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
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Variance With
Final Budget -
_____Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Public Safety: | o T
Fire:
Salaries 826,115 831,115 821,537 0,578
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 224,472 224,472 206,594 17,878
Electricity 7,500 7,500 6,747 733
Legal and Professional 200 500 1,400 (900)
Depreciation - 55,000 - 55,000
Equipment Purchased - 20,343 20,343 -
Equipment Expense 23,000 28,000 26,757 1,243
Insurance 57,600 58,900 74,184 (15,284)
Membership Fees and
Educational Training 18,000 18,000 14,973 3,027
Miscellaneous 1,520 2,420 2,612 (192)
Printing, Postage and
Office Supplies 1,000 1,600 1,670 (70)
Repairs and Maintenance 16,500 8,500 7.551 049
Small Tools and Supplies 50,200 43,650 16,101 27,549
Telephone 6,000 6,000 6,603 (603)
Uniforms 6,500 6,500 6,616 (116)
Total Fire 1,238,607 1,312,500 1,213,688 08.812
Police:
Salaries 1,428,920 1,428,920 1,408,857 20,063
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 361,145 361,145 350,085 11,060
(CONTINUED)
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES., EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

Exhibit B-5

(Continued)

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Public Safety (Continued):
Police (Continued):
Depreciation - 185,000 - 185,000
Electricity 30,000 30,000 21,320 8,680
Equipment Purchased 263,250 192,200 241,174 (43,974)
Equipment Expense 124,000 116,500 04,277 22,223
Equipment Rental 4,500 3,000 1,075 1,925
Insurance 136,192 137,192 122,309 14,883
Jail Expense 1,000 1,500 1,103 397
Membership Fees and
Educational Training 23,000 23,000 16,090 6,910
Miscellaneous 15,450 19,868 19,618 250
Printing, Postage and
Office Supplies 12,800 12,300 11,085 1,713
Professional Fees 4,000 6,500 7,095 (5935)
Repairs and Maintenance 61,000 61,000 19,931 41,069
Small Tools and Supplies 6,000 77,550 46,469 31,081
Telephone 14,500 14,500 10,802 (5,302)
Uniforms 23,000 23,000 18,281 4,719
Total Police 2,508,757 2,693,675 2,398,571 295,104
Total Public Safety 3,821,559 4,087,370 3,684,433 402,937
Highway and Streets:
Streets:
Salaries 494,945 494,945 470,951 23,994
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 129,084 129,084 116,022 13,062
Depreciation - 83,000 - 85,000
Electricity 5,000 5,000 9,396 (4,396)
Equipment Purchased 153,000 147,000 146,909 91
(CONTINUED)
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Exhibit B-5
(Continued)

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
| GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Variance With
Final Budget -
~_Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final ~ Actual (Unfavorable)
Highway and Streets (Continued):
Streets (Continued):
Equipment Expense 98,100 08,250 86,941 11,309
Equipment Rental 16,000 18,000 29,877 (11,877)
Insurance 64,046 66,546 66,565 (19)
Uniforms 7,000 9,700 9,774 (74)
Legal and Professional 1,000 1,000 360 640
Streets Maintenance .
and Materials 79,000 107,500 116,017 (8,517)
Miscellaneous 13,250 13,750 8,136 5,614
Small Tools and Supplies 13,000 25,000 32,087 (7,087)
Telephone 6,000 6,000 7,518 ~ (1,518)
Total Streets 1,079,425 1,206,775 1,100,553 _ 106,222_
Lighting:
Electricity 107,000 97,000 83,900 13,100
Total Lighting 107,000 97,000 83900 13,100
Total Highways
and Streets 1,186,425 1,303,775 1,184,453 119,322
Health:
Council on Aging | 18,800 28,100 13,489 14,611
Denham Spring Housing Authority - 5,000 4,723 277
Youth and Family Counseling 12,000 12,000 10,886 1,114
Total Health 30,800 45,100 29,098 16,002

(CONTINUED)
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

GENERAL FUND

Exhibit B-5

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDG!

(Continued)

ET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
~ Original Final Actual  (Unfavorable)
Culture and Recreation:
Main Street Program:
Salaries 25,940 235,940 25,996 (56)
Payroll Taxes, Retirement,
and Group Insurance 6,756 6,756 6,275 481
Committee Expenses 2,000 5,000 2,925 2,075
Equipment Rental 2,400 2,400 - 2,400
Grant Expenses - - 1,248 (1,248)
Insurance 888 388 1,370 (482)
Membership Fees and
Educational Training 4,900 4,900 1,384 3,516
Printing, Postage and
Office Supplies 3,275 3,275 3,829 (554)
Telephone 1,800 1,800 1,916 (116)
Travel 1,250 1,250 927 323
Total Main Street Program 52,209 52,209 45,870 6,339
Arts Council:
Art Class Expenses - 6,800 6,579 221
Committee Expenses 5,000 200 10,110 (9.910)
Contract Labor - 4,500 3,406 1,094
Program Expenses - 12,989 10,630 2,359
(CONTINUED)
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, |

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

GENERAL FUND

CXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES

Exhibit B-5

(Continued)

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Culture and Recreation (Continued):

Arts Council (Continued):
Membership Fees and
Educational Training
Miscellancous
Printing, Postage and
Office Supplies
Travel

Total Arts Council

Total Culture and
Recreation

‘Payments to Component Units
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating Transfers Out
Sale of Assets

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2,824,510 2,824,510 2,824,510

Fund Balance at End of Year

_ Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
600 150 150

170 500 -
2,030 1,350 900

%0 %0 -

8,700 27,389 31,775
60,909 79,598 77,6435
92,500 97,500 98,125

6,513,119 7084774 6,400,564

(342,209) (621,313) 199,290

(300,000}  (485,700)  (485,700)

20,000 20,000 18,116

(622,209)  (1,087,013)  (268,294)

$ 2,202,301 $1,737,497  § 2,556,216

Variance With
Final Budget -
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

-

500

450
200

(4,386)

1,953

$

il — -3 ——— e ———————
T e e — R ae aa

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2002
Governmental
Business-Type Activities -
Actrvities - Motor Pool
Utility Internal
Enterprise Fund  Service Fund
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents s 475,132 § 44,564
Investments:
Certificates of Deposit - (Maturities Greater than 90 Days) 1,913,631 -
Receivables:
Accounts (Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts of
$79,000) 205,114 -
Other 26,281 104
Unbilled Utility Sales 230,465 - |
Due from Other Funds 27,227 864
Due from Other Governments 9,645 -
498,732 068
Inventory, at Cost 124,814 24,201
Prepaid Expenses 6,046 =
Total Current Assets 3,018,355 69,733
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:
Certificate of Deposit - Customer Deposit Account
(Maturity Greater Than 90 Days) 465,000 -
Total Restricted Assets 465,000 -
Capital Assets, at Cost (Net of -
Accumulated Depreciation) 15,788,534 12,308
Total Assets $ 19,271,889 $ 82.041

e

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-1

Governmental
Business-Type Activities -
Activities - Motor Pool
Utility Internal
Enterprise Fund  Service Fund
Current Liabilities (Payable from Current Assets):
Accounts Payable $ 131,488 $ 10,410
Retainage Payable 33,650 -
Accrued Salaries and Wages | 37,217 -
Accumulated Unpaid Vacation 10,170 -
Other Current Liabilities 15,941 2,259
Bonds Payable - 1998 Series - Current Portion 216,784 -
Accrued Bond Interest 15,172 -
Total Current Liabilities (Payable from Current
Assets) 460,422 12,669
Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets):
Customers’ Deposits 516,398 -
Total Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted
Assets) 516,398 -
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accumulated Unpatd Vacation 30,522 3,653
Bonds Payable (Net of Deferred Amount on Refunding) 534,319 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 615,341 3,653
Total Liabilities 1,592,161 16,322
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 7,225,602 12,308
Unrestricted 10,454,126 53,411
Total Net Assets 17,679,728 035,719
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 19271,889 § 82,041
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the Motor Pool
Internal Service Fund Activities as they relate to the Utility
Enterprise Fund (6,373)
Net Assets of Business-Type Activities $ 17,673,355
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Exhibit C-2

Governmental
Business-Type Activities -
Activities - Motor Pool
Utility Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Fund
Operating Revenues: _
Charges for Services § 4823164 § 291,282
Total Operating Revenues 4.823.164 201,282
Operating Expenses:
Personal Services and Benefits 1,160,356 66,711
Contractual Services 719,639 839
Cost of Materials 1,316,400 227,778
Utilities 226,454 427
Repair and Maintenance 427,947 1,329
Supplies 149,006 2,036
Insurance 00,242 3,742
Depreciation 628,211 3,192
Bad Debts 22,000 -
~ Total Operating Expenses 4,740,555 308,054
Operating Income (L oss) 82,609 (16,772)
Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest 96,520 1,518
Miscellaneous 42,739 626
Total Nonoperating Revenues 139,259 2,144
Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest 72,927 -
Amortization of Bond Cosis 15,181 -
Total Nonoperating Expenses 88,108 -
Income Before Contributions 133,760 (14,628)
Capital Contributions - Impact Fees 32,935 -
Change in Net Assets 166,695 (14,628)
Total Net Assets at Beginning of Year 80,347
Total Net Assets at End of Year 5 65,719
Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of
Activities (Exhibit A-2) are different because a portion (38%) of the net
expense of the Motor Pool Internal Service Fund is reported with
business-type activities. (6,373)
Change in Net Assets of Business-Type Activities $ 160,322

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C-3

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FIL.OWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

L — -

Governmental
Business-Type Activities -
Activities - Motor Pool
Utility Internal
Enterprise Fund  Service Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 4,883,792 § 290,459
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (3,050,681) (256,486)
Cash Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits (1,149,266) (65,246)
Other Receipts (Payments) 32,280 626
Net Cash Provided by (Used i) Operating Activities 716,125 (30,647)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (800,617) -
Net Receipts from Customer Deposits 27,733 -
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds (226,664) -
Capital Contributions 32,935 -
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds (72,927) -
Net Cash Used i Capital and Related
Financing Activities (1,039,540) -
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 15,040 -
Interest Income 96,520 1,518
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 111,560 1,518
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (211,853) (29,129)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year L 686,987 73,693
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 5 475,132 % 44,564
Schedule of Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Amortization of Deferred Bond Expense $ 15,181 $ -

e i e e ]

(CONTINUED)
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FIL.OWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconctile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Provision for Bad Debts
Miscellaheous Revenues

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Other Receivables
(Increase) Decrease in Unbilled Utility Sales
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds

(Increase) Decrease in Due from Government Agencies
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory

(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses

(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Increase (Decrease) in Retainage Payable

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Wages
Increase (Decrease) Due to Other Government Agencies
Increase {Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Bond Interest

Increase (Decrease) in Accumulated Unpaid Vacation

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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Business-Type
Activities -

$

Utility
Enterprise Fund

82,609

628,211
22,000
42,739

(14,441)
69,152
22,330

(27,227)

355

(25,975)
(3,693)

(59,636)
(4,105)

6,221
(3,114)
(20,090)
(4,080)

4,869

716,125

Exhibit C-3

(Continued)

Governmental
Activities -
Motor Pool

Internal

Service Fund

5

$

(16,772)

3,192

626

(864)

(9,861)
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2002

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -

A.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Denham Springs "the City" was incorporated May 8, 1903, under the
provisions of R.S. 33:321-48, The City operates under a Mayor - City Council form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety
(police, animal control, and fire), highways and streets, health and social services, culture-

recreation, education, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general admin-
istrative services.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
these financial statements present the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana, and its
component units, entities for which the City of Denham Springs is considered to be

financially accountable. The discretely presented component units are reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally

separate from the City. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30, 2002 year
end. |

The financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary government (all funds under the
auspices of the Mayor and the City Council), (2) organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and (3) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, the Financial
Reporting Entity, established criteria for determining which component units should be
considered part of the City of Denham Springs for financial reporting purposes. The basic

criteria for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial
accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. This criteria includes:

1.  Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and

a. The ability of the City to impose its will on that organization and/or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or
impose specific financial burdens on the City.

Organizations for which the City does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally
dependent on the City.

3.  Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be

misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or signifi-
cance of the relationship.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
these financial statements present the City of Denham Springs (the primary government)

and its component units. The component units included in the accompanying financial
statements are discretely presented.

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

There are no component units that have been determined by management to be reported as

part of the primary government (blended) in the government-wide financial statements of
- the City of Denham Springs.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Component units that are legally separate from the City but are financially accountable to
the City, or whose relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are discretely presented. The
component units column of the government-wide financial statements include the financial

data of these discretely presented component units. They are reported in a separate column
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

Funding for the following state constitutionally defined agencies is included in the City's
general fund. These officials however, have certain statutorily defined sources of funds for

their own operating and/or capital budget discretion. These funds have been discretely
presented in the City's government-wide financial statements:
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Il - The Judge of the Court is an elected official
provided by the Louisiana State Constitution. Fiscal interdependency exists between the
City and the City Court in that the City is required to provide the City Court oftice
facilities and the City pays a portion of the Judge's compensation, and reimburses the
Court for certain-other salaries and benefits. The City's government-wide financial

statements discretely presents the City Court of Denham Springs - Ward IT's financial
statements for the vear ended June 30, 2002.

Marshal of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward IT - The Marshal is an elected official
provided by the Louisiana State Constitution. Fiscal interdependency exists between the
City and the Marshal in that the City is required to provide the Marshal's office facilities,
and reimburses the Marshal's office for certain other salaries and benefits. The City's

government-wide financial statements discretely presents the Marshal's financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2002,

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

City officials are also responsible for appointing members of the board of another
organization. The City's accountability does not extend beyond making the appomtments.

Denham Springs Housing Authority - The Denham Springs Housing Authority 1s a
legally separate government entity formed to administer housing programs funded by the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The City governing

authority appoints a majority of the Authority's members; however, there1s no financial
relationship between the Authority and the primary government.

The Denham Springs Parks and Recreation District #3 of Livingston Parish is a related
organization of the City, however the City officials have no responsibility for the District.
The District does however include the geographic area of the City.

Denham Springs Parks and Recreation District (PARD) - PARD 18 a legally separate
parish agency that provides parks and recreational services to the residents of Livingston

Parish District #3. District #3 includes the geographic area within the City of Denham
Springs.
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PARD sets its own ad valorem tax, can incur debt and owns property. The City has no
budget approval, management designation or commission member removal powers.
PARD finances capital and operating budgets directly from the parish constituents

within District #3, and has no financial benefit/burden relationship with the City of
Denham Springs,

The following agency is a non-profit corporation established pursuant to State Statutes to
finance debt for various public purposes within Livingston Parish. The City Council
appoints the board members of the agency. The agency is fiscally independent from the
City, 1ssues its own debt, approves its budgets, and sets its rates and charges. The primary
government has no authority to remove board members, designate management, or approve
or modify rates. The City 1s not obligated 1n any manner for the debt issues of this agency.

Denham Springs/Livingston Housing and Mortgage
Finance Authority

Complete financial statements for each of the City of Denham Springs component units and
related organizations can be obtained at the Office of the Legislative Auditor of the State of

Louisiana, 1600 North Third Street, P.O. Box 94397, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397, or at
each of the agencies administrative offices.

Gwenunerit-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from dbusiness-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately

from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit

from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital

requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiductary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be gvailable
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the govermment considers revenues to be

available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. '

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
pertod are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due
within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the

current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The general ﬁgﬂd is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.
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The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The utility enterprise fund accounts for the provision of gas, water, sewer and sanitation

services to the residents of the City of Denham Springs and some residents of the
parishes of Livingston and East Baton Rouge. All activities necessary to provide such

services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration,
operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collections.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The internal service fund accounts for services provided to other departments or
agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of funds for the periodic payment

of principal and interest on general long-term debt. There are no debt service major
funds.

The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition

or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/
proprietary funds). There are no capital projects major funds.

The permanent fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s program.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and

enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-

wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are other charges between the
City’s utility functions and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges

would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

47

e rwrr—r
Y VL o



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

Amounts reported as program revenues mclude 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are

reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the City’s utility fund and of the City's internal service
funds are charges to customers for saies and services. The City also recognizes as operating
revenue the portion of tap fees mtended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to
the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund and internal service fund include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All

revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as theyare needed.

Assets. Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments -

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand

deposits and short-term investments, with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury,

commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and the State Treasuret's
Investment Pool.

Investments (certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than 90 days) are
stated at cost.

Deposit and Investment policies of the component units are similar to those of the
primary government.
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Receivables and Payables -

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at{he end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other
funds"” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds"
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported i the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offsetby a
fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they

are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources. At June 30, 2002, there were no advances between funds.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable based on agings and estimated charge-off
percentages comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. The
property tax receivable allowance is equal to three percent of the current year property
tax levy plus one hundred percent of any unpaid prior year tax at June 30, 2002.

Property taxes are levied in September or October each vear on property values
assessed as of the same date. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the

following year, at which time the applicable property is subject to lien, and penalties
and interest are assessed.

Inventories and Prepaid Items -

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inven-

tories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than
when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Restricted Assets -

Certain proceeds and resources of the City’s Utility Enterprise Fund are set aside to
reimburse customers their utility deposits upon discontinuance of service.

Restricted assets at June 30, 2002 are comprised of certificates of deposits with
maturities greater than 90 days when purchased.

Capital Assets -

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $2,000 (amount not rounded). Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component

units, is depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated
useful lives: |

Assets Years
Buildings 15-20
Building Improvements 10 -20
Public Domain Infrastructure 50

System Infrastructure 20 - 50
Equipment 3-10
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Compensated Absences -

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the
City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from
service with the City. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these

amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as
a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations -

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activittes, or
proprietary fund type statement of net agsets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond

premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debit.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity -

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
batance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by

outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

51




10.

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

Post~-Employment Health Care Benefits -

Retiree Benefits -

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City provides
postretirement healthcare benefits to all employees who retire from the City, as per
the requirements of a local ordinance. The group insurance is paid by the City and
reimbursed by the retired employee. There is no associated cost to the City under this
program, and there are only ten (10) participants in the program as of June 30, 2002.

COBRA Benetfits -

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City
provides healthcare benefits to eligible former employees and eligible dependents.
Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for this coverage. The
premiums are paid by the City and reimbursed by the insured. This program is
offered for a duration of eighteen (18) months after the termination date. There is no

associated cost to the City under this program, and at June 30, 2002, there are six (6)
participants in the program.

Accounting for Special Assessment Project -

Special Assessment Prbjects are accounted for in accordance with guidelines
recommended by Statement No. 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Special Assessments are recognized as revenues when individual instalilments are
considered due and payable and can be used in payment of special assessment debt.

The only Special Assessment Debt outstanding at June 30, 2002, is the balance of
$13,321 due on the 1993 Paving Certificates 1ssued to pay the cost of the construction

of street paving improvements along certain portions of certain streets in the
Lakeland Acres Subdivision.
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11. Use of Estimates -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America includes the use of estimates that

affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estitates,

12, Change in Accounting Principles and Restatement of Prior Year Fund Equity -

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the City implemented the following GASB
Standards:

Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statementis - and Management s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments

Statement No. 36 - Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange
Revenues

Statement No. 37 - Basic Financial Statements ~ and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus

Statement No. 38 - Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures

Interpretation No. 6 - Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The {ransition from gwénﬁn'ental fund balances/proprietary funds total equity to net
assets tor June 30, 2001, is presented below:

Total
Governmental Business-Type  Primary
Activities Activities Government
Total Fund Balances/Fund
Equity, as Previously Reported $ 3,802,244 $17,593,380 $21,395,624
[ntemal Service Net Assets
- Reclassified to Governmental
Activities 50,347 (80,347) -
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 6,518,429 - 6,518,429
General Long-Term Debt (332.345) - (332.345)

Restated Net Assets, June 30, 2001 $10,068,675 517,513,033 - $27,581,708

e e e
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(2) Stewardship, Compliance and A ccountability -

A,  Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for all governmental funds, except the Debt

Service Fund and the Cemetery Care Permanent Fund which are not budgeted. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

~ The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
tinancial statements:

1. The City Treasurer prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and

Council no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year.

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the

proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hear-
ing is called.

3.  Apublic hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of
the call for the hearing.

4.  After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to

finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an

ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being
adopted.

5.  Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department,
program, ot function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from
revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of the City Council.

Activities of the General Fund and the Capital Project Fund are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The City is not required to prepare and does not prepare an annual

appropriated budget for its Debt Service Fund, Enterprise Fund, Internal Service Fund or
Cemetery Care Permanent Fund.
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The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City’s
department heads may make transfers within a department. Transfers of appropriations
between departments require the approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary

control is the department level. Any increase in departmental budgets must be approved by
the City Council.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended from time to time by the City
Council. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the City Council approved the increase in

the original expenditures and Transfers Out of the General Fund from $6,813,119 to
$7.570.474.

The total General Fund increase amounted to $757,355. The General Fund budget was
increased by $416,950 for depreciation expense in various departments, by $185,700 for
additional funding for various capital projects, by $29,080 for salaries and benefits in

various departments, by $28,443 for additional equipment purchases, and by $97,182 for
various other miscellaneous expenditures of the general fund.

Budgetary data for the discretely presented component units are not presented in these
financial statements.

B.  Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

Forthe year ended June 30,2002, total expenditures did not exceed appropriations by more
than 5% in any budgeted department, except within the Arts Council in which actual
expenditures of $31,775 exceeded budgeted expenditures of $27,389 by $4,386.

Deposits and Investments -

The City has established a consolidated bank account with a local bank into which monies are
deposited and from which all disbursements are now being made. The purpose of the
consolidation account is to reduce administrative charges and provide a single cash balance
available for the maximization of investment eamings. Fach fund shares in the investment
earnings of the consolidated account according to its average cash balance. Cash is transferred

‘rom those funds with available cash resources to cover any negative cash balances, if any, in other
funds at vear-end.

P
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The City also invests all excess funds in certificates of deposits, which have maturity dates
greater than 90 days when purchased, and are therefore classified as investments for financial

reporting.

The discretely presented component units maintain deposit accounts and investments in
certificates of deposits similar to the Primary Government.

A. Deposits - Primary Government

City deposits (including demand deposit accounts and all certificates of deposits) at
June 30, 2002, for the primary government of the City of Denham Springs are summarized

as fpllows:

Category 1
Category 2
Category 3

Total

Balance Sheet Classification:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments (Certificates
of Deposit with Maturities
of Greater than 90 Days)

Restricted Assets:
Investments (Certificates
of Deposit with Maturities
of Greater than 90 Days)

26

Carrying
Amount

$6,132,003

2.750
$6,134,753

g ——

$2,246,122

3,423,631

465,000

$6,134,753

Bank
Balance

$6,252.211

$6,252,211

$2,363,580

3,423,631

465.000
$6,252,211
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The City’s bank balances at June 30, 2002, are categorized into three levels of credit risk.
Category 1 includes bank balances which are insured or collateralized with securities held
by the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes bank balances which are
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or
agent 1 the City’s name. Category 3 includes bank balances which are uncollateralized,
including any balances which are collateralized with securities held by the pledging
tinancial institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

Investments - Primary Government

The City is authorized by LRS 39:1211-1245 and 33:2955 to invest monies in the
following:

United States Treasury Bonds
Umnted States Treasury Notes
United States Treasury Bills

Obligations of U.S. Government Agencies, including such instruments as Federal

Home Loan Bank bonds, Govemment National Mortgage Association bonds, or a

variety of “Federal Farm Credit” bonds.

5. Fullycollateralized certificates of deposit issued by qualified commercial banks and
savings and loan associations located within the State of Louisiana.

6.  Fully collateralized repurchase agreements.

Fully collateralized interest-bearing checking accounts.

8.  Mutual or Trust Fund institutions which are registered with the Securities and

Exchange Commission under the Security Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of

1940, and which have underlying investments consisting solely of and limited to
securities of the United States Government or its agencies.

naib el A

~

At June 30, 2002, the City has only invested its excess funds in certificates of deposit with

maturities of greater than 90 days. Therefore, these investments are included in Note 3A,
above.

Deposits ~ Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented component units are required to invest funds within the same state
statutes as the primary government. Component unit deposits (including demand deposit
accounts and all certificates of deposits) at June 30, 2002, are categorized below in three
levels of credit risk as explained in section (&) of this note above:
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City Court of Denham
Springs - Ward II -
Demand Deposits

Certificates of Deposits with
Maturities Greater than 90 Days

Total City Court of
Denham Springs ~ Ward II

Marshall of City Court of
Denham Springs - Ward [I -
Demand Deposits

Certificates of Deposits with
Maturities Greater than 90 Days

Total Marshall of
City Court of Denham
Springs - Ward Il

Total Component Units

Certificates of deposits with maturities greater than 90 days are classified on the

JUNE 30, 2002

Category Category Category
| 2 3

Bank Carrying
Balance Amount

'
o5
.

$368.781  $

145.000 i -

513,781 - -

77,259 - -

20,270 - -

97,529 - -

$611,310  $ - 5 -

Combined Balance Sheet as mvestments.

D. Deposits and Investments Summary

The following is a reconciliation of the carrying amount of deposits and investments 10
“Cash and Cash Equivalents”, “Investments”, and “Restricted Assets Investments™ on the

Government-Wide Statement of Net Assefs
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145,000  145.000

513,781 504,788

77,259 69,151

20270 20270

97,529 89,421

$611,310 $594,209
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JUNE 30, 2002
Primary Component
(Government Units Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Deposits $2.243 372 $242 745 $2,486,117
Cash on Hand 2.750 -~ 2.750
Total Cash and Cash
Equivalents 2246122 242 745 2 488,867
Investments:
Certificates of Deposits with
Maturities Greater than 20 Days - 3.423.631 165.270 3,588,901
Total Investments 3,423,631 165,270 3,588,901
Restricted Assets -
Investments:
Certificates of Deposit with
Maturities Greater than 90 Days 465,000 - 465,000
Total Restricted
Assets-Investments 465,000 - 465,000
Fiduciary Amounts Not Included
in Statement of Net Assets - 186,194 186.194
Total Cash, Cash
Equivalents and
[nvesiments at |
June 30, 2002 $6,134,753 $594,209 $6,728,962

v he—— !
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(4) Ad Valorem Taxes -

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes
are levied by the City in September or October and are actually billed to the taxpayers in Novem-

ber. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad
valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2002

The (;ity’s property taxes are now billed and collected by the Livingston Parish Tax Collector
from information on assessed values received from the Livingston Parish Assessor’s Oftice. The
Tax Collector remits collections monthly to the City.

For thf: year ended June 30, 2002, taxes of 344 mills were levied on property with assessed
valuations totaling $47,502,340 and were dedicated to general purposes.

Total taxes levied were $163 406, Taxes receivable at June 30, 2002, consisted of the following:

Taxes Receivable - Current Roll § 5,017
Taxes Receivable - Prior Years 4,045
| 0,062
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (8.947)
$ 115
Receivables - m:

Receivables as of June 30, 2002, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,
are as follows: |

Less: Total -
Ad Valorem Franchise Special Unbilled Allowance for — Net
Interest _ Taxes Royalties _ Taxes  Assessments Accounts Sales  Uncollectibles Receivable
Governmental Activities:
General Fund $8,111 § 9,062 $ 5,529 $102,338 % - $15339 § - $ (8,947) §131,432
Nonmajor Governmental
Funds 3,814 - - - 6,333 11,271 - (3,640) 17,778
Internal Service Fund 104 - - - - - - - 104
Total Governmental
Activities 12,029 9,062 5,520 102,338 6,333 26,610 - (12,587) 149,314
Business Type-Activities: |
Utility Fund 23,096 - - - - 287,299 230,465 (79,000) 461,860
Component Units:
City Court of Denham
Springs - Ward II 1,289 - - - - 3,766 - - 5,055
Marshall of City Court
of Denbam Springs -
Ward 1I 78 - - - . - - - 78
Total Component
Units 1,367 - - - - 3,766 - - 5,133

$36492  §9,062 ¢ 5529 $102,338 § 6,333 $317.675 $230,465 $(91,587) 3616307

P e A e
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(6) Due From Other Governments -

Due from Other Governments as of June 30, 2002, consists of the following:

Livingston
Parish State of Livingston
School Board  Louisiana Parish | Federal Other Total

Governmental Activities:
General Fund $551,569 $ 19,659 $124,658 $ 7,598 § 1,000 §704,484
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 44,000 - - - _.44.000

Total Governmental Activities 551,569 63,659 124,658 7,508 1,000 748484
Business Type-Activities:
Utility Fund . 9,645 - - - 9,645
Component Uniis:

City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II
Marshall of City Court of
Denham Springs - Ward II -

- -y -

Total Component Units

$551,569 $73,304

—_——

$124,658 $ 7,598 5 1,000 §$758,129

(7) Interfund Receivables, Payables - Due (To) From Primary
Government/Component Units - Transfers In, Transters Out -

a. Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2002 consist of the following:

Due to Utility Entetprise Fund from the General
Fund for Allocation of Prior Years Insurance

Rebates. | $ 27,423

Due to Motor Pool Internal Service Fund from the

General Fund for Allocation of Prior Years
Insurance Rebates. | 568

Due to General Fund from the Capital Projects Fund
for Reimbursement of Expenditures of the Capital

Projects Fund Paid by the General Fund. 2,065
30,156

Allocation of Motor Pool Internal Service Current
Year Net Loss to Business-Type Activities 6.373
' $ 36,529
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Summary of balances due from (to) other funds reported in fund financial statements and net internal
balances as reported 1n the Statement of Net Assets:

Allocation
of Motor Net
Due From Due (To)  Pool Net  Internal
Other Funds Other Funds  Loss Balances

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds $ 2,065 5(30,156) § - $ (28,091)

Statement of Net Assets - Governmental
Activities Motor Pool Internal

Service Fund 64 . 6.373 7.237
| 2,929 (30,156) 6,373 (20,854)
Statement of Net Assets -
Proprietary Fund 27,227 - (6.373) _20.854
$ 30,156 $ (30,156) § - $ -

—" o
" —

b.  Receivable and payable balances at year-end between the Primary Government and
Component Units were as follows:

Due (To)/From Due (To)/From

Primary - Component
Government Units
Primary Government; |
General Fund $ - $§ 5,889
Component Units:
City Court of Denham Springs -
Ward I - -
Marshall of City Court of Denham
Springs - Ward Il (5.889) -
Total § (5,889) $ 5,889
(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

Interfund Transfers at June 30, 2002 consist of the following:

From the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund
to Fund Current and Future Capital Projects $485,700

Summary of transfers in and (out) reported m fund financial statements and net
transters in the Statement of Activities:

Transfers Transfers Net
In Out Transfers
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - |
Governmental Funds $485,700 $(485,700) 3

-
T —r e e
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(8) Changes in Capital Assets -

Primary government capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 was as follows:

Balance
Balance Reclassifications/  July 1, 2001 Balance

June 30, 2061 Adjustments (As Restated) _ Additions _ Deletions June 30, 2002

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets not being Depreciated:

Land $ 628,671 g - § 628671 § - § - $ 628,671
Constriction in Progress 84.675 - 84 675 110,699 - 195,374
Total Capital Assets not being :
Depreciated 713,346 - 713,346 110,699 - 824,045
Capital Assets being Depreciated: |
Buildings and Improvements 3,788,836 79,879 3 868,713 14.726 - 3,883,441
[nfragtructure - 2,663,075 2,663,075 - - 2,665,075
Equipment . 3,026,493 54,215 3.080.708 435.805 (159,323 3.157.19Q
Total Capital Assets being |
Depreciated 6,815,329 2,799,169 0,614,498 450,531 (359,323) 0,705,706

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvernents - 1,552,962 1,552,962 102,114 . 1,655,076
Infrastructure - 670,691 670,691 104,989 - 775,680
Equipment - 1.570,262 1.570.262 214,463 (346,658} 1,538.069
Total Accumulated
Deprecration - 3,793,915 3,793,915 521,568 (346,638} 3,068,825

Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated, Net 6,815,329 (994,746) 5,820,583 (71,037) (12,663) 5,736,831

p—

Total Governmental Activities |
Capital Assets, Net $ 7528,675 § (994,746) $6,533,929 5 30,662 $ {12,663} $6.560.926

T e i_i_,------;--_,_:F'—'—.__._._.---—...-. e T e e
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Business-1ype Actiyities.

Capital Assets not being Depreciated:

Land $ 159575  $___- § 159,575 ' $___- S - § 159575

Total Capital Assets not being
Depreciated 159,575 . 159,575 - - 159,575

Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 224 226 (79,879) 144,347 - - 144,347
Gas System 3,307,796 - 3,307,796 - . 3,307,796
Water System 6,722,406 . 6,722,406 - - 6,722,406
Sewer System 13,447 228 - 13,447,228 688,533 - 14,135,761
Equipment 1,364,383 (54,213) 1,310.163 112.084 (188.833) 1.233.419
Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated 25,066,039 (134,094) 24,931,945 800,617 (188,833) 25,543,729
(CONTINUED)
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Balance
Balance Reclassifications/  luly 1, 2001 Balance
June 30, 2001 Adjustments (As Restated) _ Additions Deletions  June 30, 2002
Business-Type Activities {Continued):
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Building and Improvements 186,458 (69,121) F17,337 5,109 - 122446
(3as System 2,165,137 - 2,165,137 58,657 . 2,223,794
Water System 3,405,873 - 3,405,873 190,003 - 3,595,876
Sewer System 2,863,603 - 2,863,663 268,945 - 3,132,608
Equipment 072 854 {49.473) 023,381 105497 (188.832) _840.046
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 9,593,985 (118,594) 9,475,361 628,211 (188,832) 0,914,770
Total Capital Assets being -
Depreciated, Net 15,472,054 (15,500) 15,456,554 172,406 (1) 15,628,959
Total Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net $15,631,629 $ (15,500) $15,616,12¢ § 172406 & (1) $15,788,534

-
-
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 83,828
Public Safety 244,104
Highway and Streets 194.445
518,377
Capital Assets Held by Internal Service
Funds are Charged to the Various Functions
Based on their Usage of the Assets 3.191
Total Depreciation Expense -
Govemmental Activities $ 521,568
Business-Type Actiyities:
Water $ 84,594
Gas 225,862
Sewer 299,085
Sanitation 18.670
Total Depreciation Expense -
Business-Type Activities $ 628,211
(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU.
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4]

D)

Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2002. The projects include the renovation of the
“0Old City Hall” building in downtown Denham Springs, the reconstruction and drainage project down
Rodeo Drive, and the construction of a sidewalk from Rushing Road, near the interstate, to the
downtown area beginning at Range Avenue and Highway 190. Each ofthese projects are being funded

entirely by the City of Denham Springs, except that the sidewalk projects will receive a State grant for
$474,000.

Remaining
Project Speni-to-Date  Commitment

Renovation of Old City Hall $ 84,675 $ 265,325
Residential Street Construction -

Rodeo Drive 93,372 245,955
Sidewalk Construction -

Phase I - South Range Avenue 13,833 163,592

Phase II - South Range Avenue 12,716 332,716

$204,596 $1,027,588

In addition, the City is working with the State of Louisiana in an effort to ease traffic flow on State
Highways through the City of Denham Springs. The project is referred to as the Range Road Corridor
Project. The total cost of the project is estimated to be $4,200,000 with the majority of the cost being
reimbursed to the City from the State. These costs will not be capitalized as infrastucture costs, as the

City of Denham Springs will not own these improvements. Costs incurred to date as Highways and
Street expenditures amount to $265,140.

A summary of changes in capital assets for component units is as follows:

City Court of Denham Springs - Ward

Balance | Balance
Governmental Activities July 1, 2001 Additiorls  Deletions June 30, 2002
Equipment:
Copier $ 4,880 $ - S - $ 4,880
Telephone System 3,960 7,211 - 11,171
Furniture and Fixtures 19,118 - - 19,118
Computer Equipment 89,085 2.260 - 01,345
Police Equipment 4,273 - - 4,273
Leasehold Improvements 15,696 - - 15,696
Other Equipment 12,018 - - 12.018
Totals 149,030 0,471 - 158,501
(CONTINUED)
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City Court of Denham Springs - Ward II (Continued):

Balance Balance
(Governmental Activities Tulv 1, 2001 Additions Deletions June 30, 2002

[.ess: Accumulated
Depreciation (102.503) (14.211) - (116.714)

Capital Assets, Net § 46,527 § 4,740 § - $ 41,787

—

Marshali of City Court of Denham Springs - Ward Two:

Office Equipment $ 21,365 § 2,498 § 597 $ 23,266
Furniture and Fixtures 8,851 - - 8,851
Machinery and Equipment 12,871 17,468 1,075 29.264
Vehicles 59,744 19,950 12,868 66,826
Leasehold Improvements 4,411 - - 4.411
Totals 107,242 36,916 14,540 132,618
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation (71,150) (15,160) (14.540) (/1.770)
Capital Assets, Net $ 36,092 $ 24,756 § - $ 60,848

ey

&) Long-Term Debt -

Revenue Bonds. The City issues bonds where it pledges income derived from the acquired or
constructed assets to pay debt services. Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2002, are as

follows:
Original Interest Final Balance
Description/Purpose Issue Amount  _Rate Maturity June 30, 2002
Business-Type Activities:
- 1998 Utility Revenue

Refundmg Bonds -

Proceeds Used to

Advance Refund Prior

Revenue Bonds $1,712,505 7.20% 04-01-2006 $842,877
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity, including interest requirements, are as
tollows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2003 $227,944 $ 60,686 $288,630
2004 229,310 44,276 273,586
2005 225,479 27,764 253,243
2006 160,144 11.530 171,674
Total Revenue

Bonds $842,877 $144,256 $987,133

The City of Denham Springs issued $1,712,505 of 1998 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds dated
July 17, 1998. These bonds along with monies from the 1989 Sinking, Reserve, and Contingency

accounts were used to advance refund the 1989 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds. The bonds are
payable solely from revenues derived from the Enterprise Fund.

The Sinking Fund, Reserve Fund, and Contingency Fund requirements of the 1989 bond were
eliminated with the issuance of the 1998 bonds.

Special Assessment Debt. The City issued $133,210 of Special Assessment Certificates of
Indebtedness in 1993 to provide funds for the construction of street paving improvements along
certain portions of streets in the Lakeland Acres Subdivision. The Certificates bear interest at
rates of 5.60% - 8.00% and are payable in equal annual installments of principal over ten years.
These Special Assessment Certificates of Indebtedness constitute legally binding special and
limited obligations of the City. In addition, the City has legally pledged and dedicated the funds

to be derived from the collection of the special assessments levied on the real property of the
property owners of the Lakeland Acres Subdivision.

The City accounts for the collections of the annual special assessments on the property owners

of the Lakeland Acres Subdivision and the annual payments on the 1993 Paving Certificates of
Indebtedness in the 1993 Paving Certificates Debt Service Fund.
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At June 30, 2002, management estimates that earnings and collections of the special assessments
will be in amounts sufficient to cover the City’s annual Certificate of Indebtedness liability.

Original Interest  Final Balance
Description/Purpose Issue Amount _Rate Maturity June 30, 2002

Govemmental Activities:
Special Assessment
Certiticates of
Indebtedness -
Lakeland Acres

Subdivision $ 133,210  Various 6-01-2003 §$ 13,321

rarwrT
ey
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Special Assessment debt service requirements to maturity, including interest requirements, are as

follows:
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 13,321 § 773 $ 14,004

L — e S-Hirre—r—
e E— L .. fr-ar—r—

Prior Year Bond Defeasance.

There are no outstanding balances on any prior-year bond
deteasance as of June 30, 2002.

Changes in Long-Term Debt. Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 1s as
follows: |

L Due
Balance | Balance  Within
June 30, 2001 Additions Reductions June 30,2002 One Year

Governmental Activities:

1993 Certificates of
Indebtedness $ 26,642 5 - $ 13,321 $ 13,321  § 13,321
Compensated Absences 305,703 11,517 - 317,220 79,305
Governmental Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 332,345 $ 11,517 $ 13,321 $330,541 § 92,626
(CONTINUED)
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Due

Balance Balance Within
June 30, 2001 Additions Reductions June 30,2002 One Year

Business-Type Activities:

1998 Utility Revenue
- Refunding Bond $1,069,541 s - $226,664 $842,877 §227,944
Iess: Deferred Amount on
Refunding (56.455) - (15,181) {41274y  _(11.160)
Total Bonds Payable 1,013,086 - 211,483 201,603 216,784
Compensated Absences 35.823 4,869 - 40,692 10,170

Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $1,048,909 $ 4,869 $211,483 $842,295 §$ 226,954

The mnternal service fund serves predominantly the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term
liabilities tor them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year-

end $3,653 of compensated absences for the internal service fund is included in the above
amounts.

(10) Customers' Deposits -

Meter deposits are paid by customers upot application for utility services and are returnable to
them upon termination of service. Receipts from meter deposits are deposited in the Utility

Operating Fund and refunds of deposits on termination of service are made from the same
account.

The City has a certificate of deposit which is designated specifically for Customers’ Deposits, At
June 30, 2002, customers' deposits amounted to $516,398 and the balance of the certificate of

deposit amounted to $465,000 and is included as a Restricted Asset on the Statement of Net
Assets.

(11) Retirement Commitments -

A.  Plan Descriptions, Contribution Information, and Funding Policies

Substantially all employees of the City of Denham Springs are members of the following
statewide retirement systems: Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, Municipal
Police Emplovees Retirement System of Louisiana, or Firefighters Retirement System of
Louisiana. These systems are multiple employer (cost-sharing), public employee retirement
systems (PERS), controlled and administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information
relative to each plan follows:
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The following is a summary of eligibility factors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions.

Municipal
Employees Retirement
System of Louisiana

Municipal Police
Employees Retirement
System of Louisiana

Firefighters Retirement
System of Louisiana

Eligibility to
Participate All permanent employees All full-time police Mandatory for all full-
working at least 35 hours department employees time firefighters
per week, not covered by engaged 1n law en- employed by a munici-
another pension plan, and forcement are required pality, parish, or fire
under age 60 at date of to participate in the protection district
employment and are paid System. that did not enact an
wholly or in part from ordinance before
City funds; all elected January 1, 1980,
municipal officials are exempting itself from
also eligible to parti- participation in the
cipate; all employees of System.
the City are members of
Plan B.
Authority
Establishing
Contribution
Obligations
and Benefits State Statute State Statute State Statute
Plan Members'
Contribution
Rate (Percent
of Covered
Payroll) 5.00% 7.50% 8.00%
City's Contri-
bution Rate
(Percent of
Covered
Payroll) 4.50% 9.00% 9.00%

(CONTINUED)
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Period Required
to Vest

- Benetits and
Eligibility
for Distri-
bution

(Full-Time)

Deferred Retire-
ment Option

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Munictpal
Employees Retirement
Svystem of Louisiana

10 years

At or after age 60 with

at least 10 years of
creditable service or at
or after 55 with at least
30 years of creditable
service, 2% of final
average salary multiplied
by the years of creditable
service; at least 10 years
but less than 30 years

of creditable service,
may take early retirement
benefits reduced 3% for
each year retirement pre-
cedes age 60; in any case
monthly retirement
benetits can not exceed

100% of final average
salary

Yes, 30 years creditable
service

JUNE 30, 2002

Municipal Police
Employees Retirement
System of [ouisiana

12 years

25 years of creditable
service at any age or
has 20 vears of
creditable service and
is age SO orhas 12 -
years of creditable
service and 18 age 55,
3 1/3% of average
salary multiplied by
the vears of credit-
able service not to
exceed 100% of final
salary; early retire-
ment, 20 years of
service regardless of
age, 3 1/3% of average
salary multiplied by
creditable service
actuarially reduced for

retirement prior to age 50.

Yes, 25 years of
creditable service
regardless of age or
20 years of creditable
service and attaining
the age of 50

(CONTINUED)
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Firefighters Retirement
System of Louisiana

12 years

20 years or more of
creditable service and
attained age S0 or 12
years of service and
age 55 or 25 years of
service at any age,

3 1/3% of average
salary multiplied by
the years of credit-
able service not to
exceed 100% of final

salary

~ Yes, after completing
20 years of creditable
SEIvice
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Municipal
Employees Retirement
System of Louisiana

Provisions for:
Cost of Living
Adjustments

(Notmal
Retirement) Yes

Death (Duty,
Non-Duty,
Post Retire-
ment) Yes

Disability
(Duty,
Non-Duty) Yes

Cost of Living
Allowances Yes

B. Trend Information -

Contributions required by State statue:

Municipal
Employees Retirement
System of Louisiana

Municipal Police
Emplovees Retirement
System of Louisiana

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Municipal Police

Employees Retirement

System of Louisiana

Fiscal | Required

Firefighters Retirement
Svstem of Louisiana

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Firefighters Retirement
System of Louisiana

Percentage Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed Contribution  Contributed
1995 $120,454 98% $5102,681 100%
1996 $134,785 07% $109,520 100%
1997 $122,975 95% $121,390 100%
1998 $121,610 04% $130,803 100%
1999 $147,921] 100% $143,895 100%
2000 $166,991 100% $163,003 100%
2001 $177,412 100% $176,186 100%
2002 $184,844 100% $177,673 100%

73

Required Percentage
Contribution  Contributed
$ 47,647 100%
$ 64,000 100%
$ 92,223 100%
$ 65,453 100%
$ 98,786 100%
$100,037 100%
$5101.,219 100%
$122.030 100%
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Trend information showing the progress of the Systems in accumulating sufficient assets to pay

benefits when due 1s presented in their annual financial reports. Copies of these reports may be
obtained from the respective State retirement systems.

Deferred Compensation Plan -

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Louisiana
Revised Statutes 42:1301 through 42:1308 and Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954,
The Louisiana Public Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan is available to all employees and
permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. In
accordance with the amended provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 which were
enacted into law in August 1996, all amounts deferred under the plan, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights,
are solely the property and rights of the participants and their beneficiaries. As required by the

amendment to the code, the City established a custodial account with a third party administrator
who will hold the assets and income of the plan.

Under GASB Statement No. 32, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans™, governments who have no responsibility for the plan
and are not formally considered the plan’s trustee are not required to report the plan in its
financial statements. Since the City’s plan is held in a custodial account with a third party

administrator, the assets and liabilities are not presented in the City’s financial statements as of
June 30, 2002.

Assets totaling $140,281 are held by Great West Life & Annuity Insurance Company, a deferred
compensation center.

Compensation deferred under this plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, amounted to
$24,385.

Litigation -

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the City's counsel that resolution of these matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City of Denham Springs.
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(14) Intergovernmental Revenue -

GASB No. 24 requires government employers to disclose the amount recognized in the financial
statements for on-behalf payments of salaries and fringe benefits.

Supplementary salary payments are made by the State of Louisiana directly to certain groups of
the City’s employees. The City is not legally responsible for these salaries. Therefore, the

basis for recognizing the revenue and expenditure payments is the actual contribution made by the
State. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the State paid supplemental salaries to the City’s
fire and law enforcement employees in the amount of $170,710.

(15)  Segment Information - Enterprise Fund -

The City maintains only a single enterprise fund. The services provided by this enterprise fund
include basic utility services (natural gas, watet, sewer and sanitation) for all citizens of the City of
Denham Springs and to citizens within certain areas around the City of Denbam Springs. Selected
segment information for the year ended June 30, 2002, is as follows:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Assets;
Current $ 3,018,355
Restricted 465,000
Capital 15,788,534
Total Assets 19,271,889
Liabilities:
Current 976,820
Noncurrent 613,341
Total Liabilities | 1,592,161
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt 7,225,602
Unrestricted 10,454,126
Total Net Assets $17.679,728

(CONTINUED)
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Revenues
Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses).
Investment Income
-Miscellaneous Income
Interest Expense
Amortization of Bond Costs
Capital Contributions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Net Assets - End of Year
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Net Cash Provided by (Used in):
Operating Activities
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Investing Activities

Net Decrease

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year .

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

76

§ 4,823,164
(628,211)
(4,112.344)

82,609

96,520
42,739
(72,927)
(15,181)
32.935

166,695
17.513.033
$17,679,728

§ 716,125
(1,039,540)
111,560

(211,855)
686.987
§ 475,132
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

(16) Risk Management -

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The City maintains commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including (1) Worker’s
Compensation, (2) Public Official Bonds and Employees Liability, (3) Business Auto Liability, (4)
Umbrella coverage, (5) Law Enforcement Professional Liability, (6) Fire and Extended coverage

and (7) Flood Insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal vears.

(17) Mayor and Council Members’ Compensation -

The following list includes the compensation paid to the Mayor and Council Members for the year

ended June 30, 2002. The current terms of the Mayor and Council Members expire on Decem-
ber 31, 2002.

James Delaune, Mayor $ 50,000
1560 4-H Club Road |

Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726
Telephone: 665-8124

James E. Durbin, Council Member $ 7,400
417 Centerville Street

Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726

Telephone: 664-5802

Sterling Vincent, Council Member § 7,400
Streets Commissioner $ 12236
103 Carroll Street

Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726
Telephone: 665-2485

(CONTINUED)
77




CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

(17) Mayor and Council Members’ Compensation (Contihued) -

Arthur Perkins, Council Member $ .7,400
006 Hatchell Lane |

Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726

Brent Dugas, Council Member $ 7‘_,400
1440 Cottonwood Drive

Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726
Telephone: 665-3802

Layton Ricks, Council Member $ 7,400
916 Jane Drive |

Denham Springs, Louisiana 70726

Telephone: 665-7816

(18) Contingency -

The City of Denham Springs notified the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality that
it had inadvertently allowed its Louisiana Water Discharge Permit to expire May 8, 2001 and
its Louisiana Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit to expire May 31, 2001. Both
permits are in connection with the City’s wastewater facility. Subsequent thereto the State of
Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality made an onsite inspection and found various
violations of the aforementioned permits and issued a consolidated compliance order and
notice of potential penalty. A revised order was issued February 28, 2002 and contmued
negotiations have occurred since that time. No penalty has been assessed at this time, but the
City expects to spend approximately $42 5,000 to upgrade the wastewater facility in an attempt
to eliminate past violations and avoid the assessment of large penalties. These expenses will

probably be incurred over the next couple of years and have not been included in these
financial statements.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
'CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for the costs of major repairs and construction of
City streets, fpr the costs of improving major drainage arteries throughout the City, and for the
construction costs and/or major renovation costs to various City buildings.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt service tunds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal and interest.

1994 Paving Certificates Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection of a
special agsessment on the property owners of the Lakeland Acres Subdivision. The proceeds of such
collections to be used to make annual payments on the 1994 Paving Certificates of Indebtedness
incurred for the benefit of the property owners of the Lakeland Acres Subdivision.

PERMANENT FUND

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s programs.

Cemetery Care Permanent Fund - This fund 1s used to account for principal trust amounts received and
related interest income. The interest portion of the trust can be used to maintain the City’s cemetery.
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Exhibit D-1

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002
1994 Paving
Certificates  Cemetary
Capital Debt Care Nonmajor
Projects Service Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 615637 § 14,194 $§ 63,623 $ 693,454
[nvestments, at Cost 200,000 - 410,000 610,000
Receivables (Net of Allowance for |
Uncollectibles):
Special Assessments - 2,693 - 2,693
Other 12,219 48 2,818 15,085
Due from Other Governments 44,000 - . - 44,000
Total Assets $ 871,856 § 16,935 § 476,441 $ 1,365,232
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 68256 § - $ - $ 68,256
Retainages Payable 12,473 - - 12,473
Due to Other Funds 2,065 - - 2,065
Deferred Revenues - 2,693 - 2,693
Total Liabilities 82,794 2,693 - 85,487
FUND BALANCES
Fund Balance: |
Reserved for Debt Service - 13,321 - 13,321 |
Reserved for Cemetery Expenditures - - 476,441 476,441
Unreserved:
Designated for Construction 789,062 - - 789,062
Undesignated - 921 - 921
Total Fund Balances 789,062 14242 476441 1,279,745
Total Liabilities and -
Fund Balances $ 871,856 § 16,935 $ 476,441 $ 1,365,232

—_— e e ——

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES.

Revenues:
Special Assessments
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
- Current:
General Govermnment
Capital Outlay:
Highways and Streets
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest

Total Expenditures

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Exhibit D-2

Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change 1n Fund Balance
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year

1994 Paving
Certificates Cemetary
Capital Debt Care Nonmajor
Projects Service Permanent  Governmental
__ Fund Fund Fuond Funds
$ - 5 3907 % - $ 3,907
13,224 993 12,727 26,944
44,000 68 11,468 55,536 |
57,224 4968 24,195 86,387 l
- 3,293 - 3,293
251,917 - - 251,917
- 13,321 - 13,321
N - 1,545 - 1,545
251,917 18,139 - 270,076
(194,693) (13,191) 24,195 (183,689)
485700 - . __ 485700
485,700 - - 485,700
291,007 (13,191) 24,195 302,011
498,055 27433 452,246 977,734
$ 789,062 % 14,242 $ 476,441 $ 1,279,745

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement,
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Exhibit D-3

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original ~~ Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Interest $ - $ 12,000 § 13,224 $ 1,224

State Grants - 1,064,628 195,578 44,000 (151,578)
Total Revenues 1,064,628 207,578 57,224 (150,354)

Expenditures:

Construction Costs and Related Expenditures 1,414,050 561,206 251,917 309,289
Total Expenditures 1,414,050 561,206 251,917 309,289
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (349,422) (353,628) (194,693) 158,933
Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In 300,000 435,700 485,700 -
Net Change in Fund Balances (49,422) 132,072 291,007 158,935
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 498,055 498,055 498,055 -
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 448,633 $ 630,127 $ 789,062 $ 158,935

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
82

N P



CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

Exhibit E-1 |

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS!

SCHEDULE BY SOQURCE

JUNE 30, 2002

Governmental Funds Capital Assets:
Land

Land Improvements
Buildings

Equipment

Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

Total General Fixed Assets

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source:
General Fund Revenues

Federal Revenues and Federal Grants
Donated Infrastructure
Capital Improvement Funds:
City's Share of Cost:
General Fund

Federal Revenue Sharing
Federal Grants
State Grants

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets

'This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental
funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service fund is
excluded from the above amounts. The capital assets of the internal service fund
is included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of this statement.
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5 628,671

38,565
3,764,997
3,102,975
2,665,075
195374

$ 10,395,657

$ 3,666,147

1,812,099
$ 10,395,657

e e

325,131
331,772

3,366,285
201,482
492.741
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY"

JUNE 30, 2002
Improvements
Other Than
Land Buildings

Function and Activity:
General Government:

General Government Buildings $ 415439 § 13,950
Administration - -
Cemetery 2,000 11,002
Tax - -
Planning and Development - -
Public Service Workers - -
Total General Government 417,439 24,952
Public Safety:
Animal Control 1,500 4,660
Fire 8,250 -
Police 201,482 8,953
Total Public Safety 211,232 13,613
Highways and Streets:
Streets | - }
Health: |
Council on Aging - =
Total Governmental Funds Capital
Assets Allocated to Functions 38,565

$ 628,671 $

T A— T— v e —

Sk ——r

'"This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental
funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service fund is
excluded from the above amounts. The capital assets of the internal service fund
is included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

The accompanying notes constitute an iﬂtegral part of this statement.
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_ Buildings _

$ 1,578,500

10,313

10,647

1,599,460

81,603
232,425

1,475,445

1,789,473

3,174

370,890

$ 3,764,997
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Machinery
and
EguiEment [nfrastructure ~Total
$ - $ - § 2.007.889
135,866 - 135,866
21,272 - 44,587
9,228 - 9,228
55,203 - 55,203
33308 - 43950
254,872 - 2,296,723
23,361 - 111,124
801,219 - 1,041,894
1,118,235 - . 2,804,115
1,942,815 - 3,957,133
605,288 2,665,075 3,575,537

- - 370,890

$ 3,102,975 $ 2,665,075 10,200,283

Construction in Progress 195,374

$10.395,657_
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN TH]

t OPERATION OF GOV,

Exhibit E-3

ERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY!

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Function and Activity:
General Government:

General Government Buildings
Administration

Cemetery
Tax

Planning and Development
Public Service Workers

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Animal Control
Fire
Police

Total Public Safety

Highways and Streets:
Streets

Health:
Council on Aging

Construction in Progress

Total Governmental Funds
Capital Assets

I'This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental
funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service fund is
excluded from the above amounts. The capital assets of the internal service fund
is included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets. |

The accompany notes constitute an integral part o1 this statement.
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Govemmental
Funds Capital Governmental
Assets Funds Capital
7/1/01 Assets
(as Restated) Additions  Deductions 6/30/02
$ 1,993,163 § 14,726 & - $ 2,007,889
138,405 9,160 11,699 135,866
49,879 - 5,292 44,587
17,798 - 8,570 9,228
45,877 18,219 8,893 55,203
43,950 - - 43,950
2,289,072 42,105 34,454 2,296,723
111,124 - - 111,124
1,119,276 20,342 97,724 1,041,894
2,675,657 241,175 112,717 2,804,115
3,506,057 261,517 210,441 3,957,133
3,543,056 146,909 114,428 3,575,537
370,890 - - 370,890
84,675 110,699 - 195,374
$ 10,193,750  §$561,230 § 359,323  § 10,395,657




SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
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Schedule 1

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS BY DEPARTMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(yas Water Sewer Sanitation
Department  Depariment  Department  Department ~ Total
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $2,600,288  $1,017,211] § 564,757 § 5457253 $ 4,727,509
Delinquent Charges 36,448 14,579 7,952 7,290 66,269
Miscellaneous ot 29,326 60 - 29.386
Total Operating Revenues 2,636,736 1,061,116 572,769 552,543 4,823,164
Operating Expenses:
Direct 2,084,239 636,116 732,222 559,712 4,012,289
General and Administrative 249570 228,978 196,087 53,231 728,266
Total Operating Expenses 2,334,200 865,094 028.309 612,943 4,740,553
Operating Income (Loss) by |
Department 302,527 196,022 (355,540) (60,400) 82,609
Nonoperating Revenues - - - - 139,259
Nonoperating Expenses - - (88,108) - (88,108)
Capital Contributions - - 32,935 - 32,935
Change in Net Assets 166,695
Allocation of Motor Pool Internal
Service Net Loss o (1,798) (2,485) (2,090) - (6,373

Business-Type Activities
Departmental Net Income (Loss) $ 300,729  § 193,537  § (412.803) § (60,400)

e e e — e ———rri————ia

Change in Net Assets
Business-Type Activities $ 160,322

]

See auditor's report.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

UTILITY |

ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Gas Water Sewer
Department Department Department
Direct Expenses:
Natural Gas Purchases $1,316,400 - § -
Direct Labor 353,770 181,533 230,943
Chlorinator Expense - 12,372 -
Depreciation 84,594 225,802 399,085
Electricity 9,913 03,422 65,682
Equipment Expenses 71,255 33,758 33,700
Equipment Rental 16,279 3,940 2,269
Lab Fees - - 12,752
Maintenance 167,608 28,257 80,670
Meter Reading 35,883 46,732 -
Meter Repairs 7,892 - -
Small Tools and Supplies 20,645 10,240 7,121
Subcontract Disposal Service - - -
2,084,239 636,116 732,222
General and Administrative
Expenses:
Office Salaries 41,785 57,768 48,556
Payroll Taxes, Retirement
and Group Insurance 86,985 58,233 64,309
Electricity 1,894 2,618 2,200
Ground Maintenance - 1,822 49
Insurance 33,471 24,934 30,907
Miscellaneous 26,810 11,348 9,258
Office Expense 22.424 20,494 14,693
Professional Fees 5,858 31,987 10,936
Telephone 25,584 12.642 9,184
Bad Debts 5,159 7,132 5,995
249,970 228,978 196,087
Total Operating Expenses $ 865,094 $ 928,309

$ 2,334,209

See auditot's report.
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Sanitation

Department

L s

18,670

2,936

668
537,438

5

559,712

30,078

6,396
1,363

930
1,744
3,561
3,493
1,952
3,714

53,231
612,943

Schedule 2

Total

= i —

$ 1,316,400
166,246
12,372
628211
169,017
141,649
22 488
12,752
276,535
82,615
7.892
38,674

537,438

4,012,289

178,187

215,923
8,075
1,871

90,242
49,160
61,172
52,274
49,362

22,000

728,266
$ 4,740,553




Schedule 3

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Personal Services and Benefits:

Direct Labor - $ 766,246
Office Salaries 178,187
Payroll Taxes, Retirement and Group Insurance 215,923
1,160,356
Contractual Services:
Chlorinator Expense 12,372
Equipment Rental | | - 22,488
Lab Fees 12,752
Meter Reading 82,615
Subcontract Disposal Service 537,438
Professional Fees 52,274
719,939
Cost of Materials:
Natural Gas Purchases 1,316,400
Utilities:
Electricity (Direct) 169,017
Electricity (General) | 8,075
Telephone | 49,362
226,454
Repair and Maintenance:
Equipment Expenses 141,649
Maintenance | 276,535
Meter Repairs 7,892
Ground Maintenance | 1,871
427,947
Supplies:
Small Tools and Supplies | - 38,674
Office Expense 61,172
Miscellaneous 49.160
149,006
Insurance | 90,242
Depreciation 628,211
Bad Debts 22,000
Total Operating Expenses ~$ 4,740,555

See auditor's report.

o R T -.',-;5"1“!;4 L



Schedule 4

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE
JUNE 30, 2002

Expiration
Insurance Coverage Amount Date
CNA Surety Public Official Bonds

Mayor; James Delaune 3 50,000 1/04/03

Council Members:

Arthur Perkins $ 10,000 1/12/03

Sterling Vincent $ 10,000 1/04/03

Layton Ricks $ 10,000 1/01/03

James E. Durbin $ 10,000 1/01/03

Brent Dugas $ 10,000 1/01/03

City Treasurer:
Clarence Speed | $ 50,000 12/11/02
Coregis Property and Casualty
Coverage -
00% Co-Insurance:
Municipal Building $ 1,624,000
Contents $ 460,000 7/01/02
941 Government Street
Steel Water Tank and Tower $ 250,000 7/01/02
110 Brignac Street
Council on Aging Buildings § 439,755 7/01/02
949 Government Street
Fire Station Building o $ 212,211
Contents - $ 10,000 - 7/01/02
1100 Hatchell Lang
Police Station and Jail Facility $1,350,000
Contents 5 150,000 7/01/02
4477 L amm Street
Fire Station Building $ 270,504
Contents $ 12,000 7/01/02
050 Government Street
(CONTINUED)
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SCHEDU

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
LE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE (CONTINUED)

Insurance

Coregis

Louisiana Workers’
Compensation
Corporation

JUNE 30, 2002

Coverage

Office Trailer Building
Contents

9150 Forest Delatte Road

Animal Control Center
Buildimng

Contents

600-C Bowman St.

Youth Services

Office Building
Contents

040 Government Street

Uttlity Warehouse Building
Contents

112 Brignac Street

Motor Pool and Warchouse
Building

Contents

401 N. Railroad Ave,

Augusta Lane Pump
Station Building
Augusta Lane

Steel Water Tank and Tower
Pete’s Highway

Workmen's Compensation
Statutory

(CONTINUED)
92

Amount

$ 5,500
$§ 1,000

$ 58,000
$ 2,000

S 218,376
$ 100,000

$ 90,000
§ 30,000

$ 226,800
$ 75,000

$ 12,000

$ 550,000

Schedule 4
(Continued)

Expiration
Date

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02
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Schedule 4

(Continued)
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2002
- Expiration

Insurance Coverage Amount Date
Coregis General Liability 51,000,000 7/01/02

Law Entorcement

Professional Liability $1,000,000 7/01/02
Coregis Public Officials

and Employees Liability

Errors and Omissions $1,000,000 7/01/02
Coregis Business Auto

Liability $1,000,000 7/01/02
Coregis Umbrella $1,000,000 7/01/02
National Flood Services Flood Insurance:

Fire Station Building $ 28,000

Contents $§ 20,000 7/01/02

930 Government Street

Youth Services Office Building $§ 55,000

Contents s 20,000 7/01/02

940 Government Street

Municipal Building $ 215,000

Contents $ 40,000 7/01/02

041 Government Street

Council on Aging Building $ 60,000

Contents $ 40,000 7/01/02

049 Government Street

(CONTINU:
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2002

Insurance Coverage

Fire Station Building
Contents

1100 Hatchell Lane

Police Station and
Jail Facility
Contents

447 Lamm Strect

Animal Control Center
Building
600-C Bowman Street

See auditor’s report.
04

Amount

§ 28,000
$ 20,000

$ 250,000
$ 20,000

$ 16,000

Schedule 4
(Continued)

Expiration
Date

7/01/02

7/01/02

7/01/02
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THIS SECTION WHICH IS COMPOSED OF ACCOUNTING
AND NONACCOUNTING DATA IS PRESENTED IN ORDER TO
PROVIDE THE READER WITH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

AS AN AID TO UNDERSTANDING THE FINANCIAIL ACTIVITIES
OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT
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Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1996
2000

2001

2002

Total

$3,540,970

4,817,679
4,542,641
4,715,110
5,084,763
6,079,148
5,977,575
6,042,546
6,186,246

0,886,264

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER USES BY FUNCTION
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
LAST TEN YEARS
General Ward
Government Cemetery Tax Court
$470,484 $49411  $77,726  $172,737
512,930 53,099 80,704 93,256%
460,524 51,963 99,898 93,185
566,415 54,714 113,187 ' 52,214
567,761 65,158 105,258 52,923
589,791 65,107 127,940 53,815
609,259 63,710 115,097 47,611
797,211 84,230 127,521 48,649
786,534 78248 119,634 50,588
768,763 76,544 134,822 52,931

Planning
and

Development

$116,951
132,130
136,559
118,126
118,433
149,361
129,454
164,428
186,565

201,467

Public
Service

Worker

$ 9,583
15,409
32,047
49,474
36,735
57,547
73,085
86,852
77,301

92,283

*In compliance with GASB-14 beginning in 1994 certain general fund expenditures made to reimburse the
Court for operating expenditures of the Court are now shown as Other Uses - Transfers to Component Units.

"Beginning in fiscal year 1997, salaries for the public service supervisor was allocated to Public Service
Workers instead of Ward Court.

SOURCE: Annual Audited Basic Financial Statements.
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Summer
Food
Program

$ 12,507
12,3773
12,030
16,633
11,692
12,908

7,997

Animal
Control

$21,450
21,103
27,306
30,963
32,541
34,346
50,962
47,983
65,256

72,174

Fire

$610,281

691,075

741,461

763,037
917,192
930,801
909,489
962,111
1,168,583

1,213,688

Police

5 981,010

1,157,293
1,255,312
1,450,946
1,553,477
1,677,296
1,840,913
2,141,501
2,294,625

2,398,571

Streets
and
Lighting

$ 753,302

97

§12,850
844,274
732,513
881,121

782,805

820,325

1,057,353
1,174,442

1,184,453

Health

$18,285
19,334
18,977

19,606

18,723

24,695
36,144
33,450
25,954

29,098

Schedule 5

Culture
and
Recreation

5 -

17,083
48,462
56,570

115,873
62,994

77,645

Other
Uses

$ 247,243

11,216,123

769,105
727,232
706,666

1,504,274

1,216,955
375,384

95,522

583,825




1993
1994
1995
1996
1697
1598
1999
2000
2001
2002

Year

T

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

SOURCE: Annual Audited Basic Financial Statements.
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GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
LAST TEN YEARS
Licenses
and Fines and 011 Service
Total Taxes Permits Forfeits Fees
$3,940.216 $3,009,363 $ 373,304 $ 236,173 $ -
4,454,331 3,267,008 419 813 238,133 50.034
4. 777,392 3.490.035 521,309 243,707 112,984
5,224,269 3,871,998 520,631 189,498 131,040
3,356,854 4,001,014 549,065 173,708 153,783
5,622,484 4,166,264 543224 161,915 165,314
6,131,685 4,521,898 625,763 174,827 185,202
6,559,820 4,908,105 658,740 205,178 188,662
6,592,244 4,811,962 603,394 260,226 187,131
6,617,970 4,935,933 627,006 244,035 197,785
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
GENERAL FUND TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
LAST TEN YEARS
(eneral Alcoholic Chain Flectrical
Property Beverage & Store Franchise
Total Taxes Cable T.V, Tax Tax
$3.009.363  $107.672 $ 59,192 $10.510 $345.708
3,267,098 114,676 65,384 10,911 382,869
3,490,035 123,055 68,918 12,595 354,770
3,871,998 128,952 79,655 11,085 410,645
4,001,014 131,255 79,430 12,270 377,544
4,166,264 126,772 79,889 11,984 398,317
4,521,808 138,954 03,593 15,535 397,231
4,908,105 135,970 128,082 17,690 432,712
4,811,962 163,471 77,396 18,606 488,797
4,935,933 159,204 125,973 18,538 437.017

Sales Tax

- $2.440,746

2,571,786
2,749,728
3,035,569
3,182,993
3,334,669
3,655,439
4,149,183
4,061,946
4,193,182

e 1




Interest

$ 37,594
35,945
38,374
79,822
85,202

107,266
76,973
39,229

115,938
59,518

Tobacco
Taxes

$44,655
42,998
42,282
42,578
42,564
42 571
42571
42,571

Other
Financing
Miscellaneous Sources
$291,359 $ 1,423
427,504 15,804
351,457 19,526
418,027 13,253
379,707 14,375
- 430,469 18,032
533,021 14,001
490,085 19,821
581,983 31,610
535,577 18,116
Wrecker Video
Franchise Poker
Tax Fees
$ 880 S -
1,740 76,734
2,260 136,427
1,820 161,694
1,870 173,088
2,160 169,902
2.105 176,470
1,897 -
1,746 -
2,019 -
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Year

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Schedule 7
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of
Total Percent Prior Year Total
Tax of Levy Tax Total Tax Collections
Levyl Collections Collected Collections Collections to Tax Levy
- $108,202 $106,516 08.44% S - $106,516 98.44%
119,742 117,232%* 97.90% 631 117,863 98.43%
126,271 124,184 08.35% 1,762 125,946 -99.74%
129,745 128,135 0R8.76% 1,379 129,514 99.82%
130,850 129,826 99,22% 1,493 131,319 100.36%
128,904 124,877 96.88% 452 125,329 97.23%
140,063 134,660 06.14% 4.545 139,205 H9.38%
148,065 130,600 28.20% 1,310 131,910 89.09%"
158,130 150,197 94.98% 15,184 165,381 104.59%
163,406 158,389 96.53% 3,889 162,278 99.31%

*Total 1994 collections includes $3,187 of collections which were subsequently unaccounted for.

'"Total Tax Levy" represents the taxpayer portion of the original levy of the Assessor and is the amount to be

paid by the taxpayer. The amounts to be paid by the taxpayer are ultimately collected in full except tor
adjustments due to assessment errors or delayed homestead exemptions.

SOQURCE: City of Denham Springs Tax Office.

*During fiscal year ended June 30, 2000, numerous Louisiana Tax Commission Change Orders occurred
reducing the percent of levy coliected.
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Schedule 8

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE
OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of Total
Assessed Value
Assessed Estimated to Total Estimated
Y ear Value Actual Value Actual Valye®*
1993 $21,961,990 $199.654.455 11%
1994 25,282 810 229,843,727 11
1995 26,809,190 243.719.909 11
1996 27,546,730 250,424,818 11
1997 31,914,520 290,132,000 11
1968 31,439,890 285,817,200 11
1999 34,161,710 310,561,000 1
2000 36,113,430 328,303,900 11
2001 45,968,510 417,895,550 11
2002 47,502,340 431,839,450 i1

*Actual Valuation (Market Value) as Compared to Assessed Valuation

Residential properties are assessed at 10% of fair market value; commercial and industrial properties,

excluding land, arc assessed at 15%. The overall assessed value is estimated to be 11% of actual market
value.

SQURCE: Livingston Parish Assessor's Grand Recapitulation of the Assessment Roll for the Parish of
Livingston, |
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LAST TEN YEARS
Parish
| School Drainage Recreation
Year City Parishwide' District #1 District #1 District #3
Tax Rates (Mills Per Dollar)
1993 4.71 51.42 22.70 7.50 39.88
1994 4.71 55.24 22.47 7.50 34.88
1993 4.71 59.24 18.74 7.50 30.89
1996 4.71 68.70 61.72 7.50 15.00
1997 4.10 67.45 53.29 7.03 30.00
1998 4.10 67.45 41.87 5.03 20.00
1999 4.10 64.56 33.64 4.53 18.00
2000 4.10 64.56 28.22 4,53 18.00
2001 3.44 62.84 24.16 3.66 20.00
2002 3.44 62.11 19.25 5.00 18.00
TAX LEVIES

1993 $108,202 $ 747,344 $ 329,925 $109,006 $579,621
1994 119,742 938,215 355,869 118,781 552,413
1995 126,271 1,006,853 318,508 127,471 525,011
1996 129,745 1,193,129 1,071,905 130,254 260,508
1997 130,850 1,414,565 1,117,601 147,432 629,162
1998 128,904 1,359,568 843,960 101,388 403,134
1999 140,063 1,477,355 769,799 103,662 411,902
2000 148,065 1,542,418 674,211 108,227 430,042
2001 158,132 1,936,323 744,455 112,778 616,271
2002 163,406 1,991,400 617,203 160,312 577,125

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

PROPERTY TAX RATES AND TAX LEVIES -

DIRECT AND OVERL APPING GOVERNMENTS

The tax levies represent the original levy of the assessor less the homestead exemption amounts.

‘Parishwide - includes all or some of the following:

Parish/Local, Dixon Sinking, Courthouse Sinking, Road Equipment/Maintenance, Drainage Tax,
Courthouse Maintenance, Health Unit, Library, Assessor, Law Enforcement, School

Parishwide Constitutional Tax, School Parishwide Additional Support, School Parishwide
District #5, School Parishwide Special Maintenance,

SQURCE: Livingston Parish Assessor's Grand Recapitulation of the Assessment Roll for the Parish
of Livingston.
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Law Enforcement

District

12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51
12.51

$ 181,822
198,127
212,622
217,264
262,360
252,160
286,272
298,879

385,478

401,102

Juvenile Detention
_Center

3.00
3.00
3.00
3.00
3.00
3.00

Total

138.72
141.31
133.39
170.14
177.3%
153.96
140.34
134.92
126.61
123.31

$2,055,920
2,283,147
2,316,736
3,002,805
3,764,386
3,149,584
3,257,703
3.273,516
4,045,878
4,006,735
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Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Assessments
Beginning
of Year

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

g -

109,675"
88,815
58,304
44,192
35,667
27.610
17,070
10,240

Schedule 10

LAST TEN YEARS

Additions Assessments
and End of

Adiustments Collections Year

5 - $ - $ -

133,210 23,535 109,675

- 20.860 88 815
. 30,511 58,304
- 14,112 44,192
- 8,525 35,667
- 8,057 27,610
- 10,540 17,070
i 6,830 10,240
- 3,907 6,333

'Lakeland Acres Subdivision Paving Project.

SOURCE: Annual Audited Basic Financial Statements.
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Schedule 11
CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF LEGAL DEBT LIMIT

General Bonded Indebtedness

POWER TO INCUR DEBT

Municipal corporations, parishes and school districts, roads, sewer-age, waterworks and dramage districts,

hospital service districts, fire protection districts, and gas utility districts may incur debt and issue
negotiable bonds. (LRS 39:551)

LIMIT OF INDEBTEDNESS

No debt shall be incurred and bonds issued by any local government for any one of the purposes herein
provided, which, including the existing bonded debt of such government, shall exceed in the aggregate ten
percent of the assessed valuation of the taxable property. However, the governing authority of a
municipality may incur debt and issue bonds therefore as provided in this Subsection, for the purpose set
forth in Louisiana R.S. 39:553, which may exceed ten percent for any one of such purposes, provided that
the aggregate for all of such purposes determined at the time of issuance of the bonds does not exceed
thirty-five percent of the assessed valuation of the taxable property of the municipality. (LRS 39:562)

MUNICIPAL PURPOSES

The governing authorities of municipal corporations, including cities, towns and villages, may incur debt
and issue bonds of the municipal corporations for the following purposes: opening, constructing, paving
and improving streets, sidewalks, roads and alleys; constructing bridges; purchasing or constructing
waterworks; sewers and sewerage disposal works; drains, drainage canals, and pumping plants; waste
disposal facilities; facilities for pollution control and abatement; light and power plants; gas plants;
artificial ice and refrigerating plants; halls; courthouses; jails; public markets and abattoirs; fire department
stations and equipment; hospitals; auditoriums; public parks; natatoriums; libraries; school houses;
teachers' homes, and other public buildings; docks, wharves, ‘and river terminals; acquiring and/or
improving lands for industrial parks, within or without the corporate limits of the municipality; and other
works of public improvement as the legislature may expressly authorize. Debt may be incurred and bonds

may be issued for the necessary equipment and furnishings for the works, buildings and improvements.
(LRS 39:553)
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MAXIMUM DURATION AND INTEREST LIMITATION

No bonds issued shall run for a period longer than forty (40) years, or bear a greater rate of interest than
the rate set in the proposition approved at the election or be sold for less than par. (LRS 39:563, 39:1424)

ISSUING BONDS: VOTE BY TAXPAYERS

A majority of all qualified voters voting thereon must vote in favor of the proposition to incur debt and
issue bonds. (LRS 39:561)

LEVY OF TAXES

The governing authority shall impose and collect annually in excess of all other taxes, a tax on the property
subject to taxation sufficient to pay annual principal and interest on these bonds. (LRS 39:569)

Total Assessed Value of Taxable Property - $47.502,340
10% of 35% of
Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation
Legal Debt Limitation $4,750,234 $16,625,819

—

Pirir—tula'-ulr
—

rir e—
— iy

There are no outstanding bonds secured by ad valorem taxes of the City of Denham Springs as of June 30,
2002.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TQO ASSESSED VALUE
AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN YEARS |

\

General Less |

Assessed Obligation Debt Service |

Year Population' Value Bonded Debt Fund”

1993 8,538 21,961,990 S - $ - i

1994 8,655 25282810 i i
1965 8,797 26,809,190 - -
1996 8902 27,546,730 i :
1997 9,011 31,014,520 - -
1698 9,171 31,439,890 - -
1999 9,248 34,161,710 - -
2000 9,175 36,113,430 - -
2001 8,757 45,968,510 - -
2002 8,883 47,502,340 - -

SOURCES: 'Estimates prepared by Capital Region Planning Commission.

*Livingston Parish Assessor's Grand Recapitulation of the Assessment Roll for the Parish of
Livingston.

* Amount available in Debt Service Fund for repayment of General Obligation Bonds.
Annual Audited Basic Financial Statements.
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Year

1993
1694

1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Schedule 13

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES

FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL

Principal

s -

GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of
Debt Service
Total General to General
Total Debt  Governmental Governmental
[nterest’ Service” Expenditures’ Expenditures
$ - 5 - $3,540,970 %

- - 4,817,679 -
- - 4 542 641 .
i i 4,715,110 -
- - 5,084,763 -
- - 6,079,148 -
- - 5,977,575 -
- - 6,042,546 -
- - 6,186,246 -
- - 6,886,264 -

'"Excludes paying agent fees and other costs.

“Total Debt Service includes general obligation bonds only, (Does not include Special Assessment
Certificates of Indebtedness or Revenue Bonds issued by the Utility Enterprise Fund.)

3E:ﬁtpencii’u.uvas and Other Uses of the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds, excluding the

expenditures of the Special Assessment Debt Service Fund and 1988 Certificates of Indebtedness
Debt Service Fund.

SOURC.

H: Annual Audited Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

Schedule 14

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2002
Amounts In
Debt Service
Gross Debt Fund For
Qutstanding Principal
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT
City of Denham Springs $ - $ -
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES
School District #1 $ 8,176,576 $1,110.208
Jail Bonds: 10,879 -
19,802 -
165,000 -
Recreation District No. 3 2,225,000 370,020
Total Other
Governmental
Agencies $10,597,257 $1,480,228
Total Direct
and Over-
lapping Debt $10.597,257 $1,480,228
2002 City Population
Per Capita

110

City of
__Denham Springs
Net Debt Share of
Outstanding Percent Debt
$ - 100% $ -
$7,066,368 40% $2,826,547
10,879 17% 1,849
19,802 17% 3,366
165,000 17% 28,050
1.854.980 46% 853,291
$9,117,029 $3,713,103
$9,117,029 $3,713,103
8,883
$ 418
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

SUMMARY OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

LAST TEN YEARS
Utility Enterprise Fund
Other Available

Gross Financial for Debt
Year Revenue' Sources Expenses” Other Uses’ Service
1993 $3,453,844 $ - $2.403,230 S $1,050,614
1994 3,883,907 i 2,733,004 5,108 1,145,795
1995 3,561,853 - 2,576,764 - 085,089
1996 4,042,911 200,000° 2,998,298 - 1,244,613
1997 3,960,407 200,000 3,038,828 - 1,121,579
1998 4,261,063 - 3,176,498 - 1,084,565
1999 4,006,415 - 3,061,149 - 045,266
2000 4,308,006 - 3,349,639 - 958,367
2001 5,819,138 - 5,052,724 - 766,414
2002 4,962,423 i 4,127,525 - 834,898

'Total Operating Revenues plus Non-Operating Revenues.

“Total Operating Expenses plus Non-Operating Expenses less Depreciation and Debt Service Interest on
Revenue Bonds.

3Dperating Transfers Out.

4Operating Transfersl In.

“Includes the paydown of old debt of $255,524 at advance refunding. Reduced interest rate from 11.0% to
7.2%.

SOURCE: Annual Audited Basic Financial Statements.
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Schedule 15

Debt Service Requirements

112

Principal Interest Total Coverage

$ 118,433 $296,351 $ 414,784 2.54
121,637 283,236 404,873 2.84
125,214 269,759 394,973 2.49
129,207 255,874 385,081 3.23
128,374 241,685 370,059 3.03
132,735 227.441 360,176 3.01
453,582 124,029 577,611 1.64
219,438 105,090 324,528 2.96
225 467 39,182 314,649 2.44
226,664 72,927 299,591 2.79
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Schedule 16

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

DEMOGRAPHICS STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
Per Public Unemployment  Unemployment
Capita School Livingston Labor
Year P(}pulatiﬂnl Income” Enrollment” Parish’ Market Area’
1993 8,538 $14,330 16,600 8.8% 7.3%
1994 8,655 14,737 17,000 9.5 7.4
1995 8,797 16,525 17,400 10.5 8.3
1996 8,902 17,017 18,100 8.5 7.0
1997 9,011 18,057 18,177 7.7 6.6
1998 9,171 18,979 18,522 6.3 5.9
1999 3,248 20,194 18,851 5.5 5.4
2000 9,175 21,016 19,425 5.1 4.4
2001 8,757 21,060 19,648 3.6 5.0
2002 3,883 21,060 20,081 6.0 5.4

'Population of City of Denham Springs from State Treasurer’s Office.

“Parishwide Per Capita Income Per Capital Region Planning Commission.
*Per Capital Region Planning Commission.
*Livingston Parish School Board.
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Schedule 17

CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS
CONSTRUCTION
LAST TEN YEARS
Residential Construction Commercial Construction
Number Number

Year of Permits Value - of Permits Value
1993 35 $2.336.500 10 $5.324 500
1964 37 2,816,721 & 1,982,600
1995 42 3,261,150 9 7,233,000
1996 104 5,417,150 34 4 987,980
1997 72 2.471.903 50 11,121,905
199% 85 2,448,471 62 8,739.416
1999 06 5,062,716 38 14,169,551
2000 94 4,040,349 34 3,649,617
2001 71 3,016,413 50 7,041,155
2002 55 1,966,656 43 8,246,207

SOURCE: Denham Springs Office of Planning and Develcrpmeﬁt.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

PRINCIPAL SALES TAXPAYERS

Taxpaver

Wal-Mart Store
Winn-Dixie Store
Walgreens Store

James Drugstore

Smith Building Supply, Inc.

Rite-Aid (Formerly K&B Drug Store)
Racetrac

Ryan’s
All Star Dodge
Picadilly Cafeteria

JUNE 30, 2002

Type of
Business

General Merchandise
Retail Grocery

Retail Pharmacy

Retail Phammacy

Retail Hardware

Retail Pharmacy

Retail Convenience
Retail Food |
Retail Parts and Repatrs
Retail Food

SQURCE: Livingston Parish School Board - Sales Tax Office.
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

MISCELLANEOQUS STATISTICS

Date of Incorporation

Form of Government

Area

Fire Protection:
Number of Stations

Number of Firefighters and Officers
Number of Volunteer Firemen

Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Police Officers

Sewers:
Number of Pumping Stations
Type of Treatment System

Employees:
Number of Employees

Municipal Utilities:
Number of Gas Customers
Number of Sewer Customers
Number of Water Customers
Number of Waste Disposal Customers

City Sales Tax Rate

JUNE 30, 2002

116

May 8, 1903

Mayor - City Council
Lawrason Act

City 6 square miles
Parish 642 square miles

32
Rock Reed Filter

170

4,591,
57289°
6,356
3,275

1.5%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROIL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
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Laura E, Monroe, CPA*
*A Professional Accounting Corporalion

Baton Rougw., j & 70804

September 17, 2002

The Mayor and Members of
the City Council

City of Denham Springs

Denham Springs, Louisiana

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Denham Springs, L.ouisiana, as of ang for the
year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated September 17, 2002. We copgducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America gnd the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued Ry the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect gp the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opiniop, The

results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Goverament

Auditing Standards, which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cgsts as
items 02-01 through 02-06.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reg@Fting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the fipancial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Howgyer, we
noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operatiog that we
consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our gifention
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial Feporting
that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City of Denham Springs’ ability to record, grocess,
summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the basic gngucial
statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and qugstioned
costs as items 02-07 through 02-12.

A material weakness is a condition i which the design or operation of one or more of the interng] control
components does not reduce to arelatively low level the risk that misstatements 1n amounts that wguld be
material in relation to the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected wyithin a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consjggration
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the jpternal
control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all rﬁgﬁgrtgble
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable copgjtions

described above, we consider item 02-10 to be a material weakness. We also noted other matters igpyolving

the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the City of Bgpham
Springs in a separate letter dated September 17, 2002. -

This report is intended for the infnrfnation of management and the Office of the Legislative Audiigy, State
of Louisiana, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This restriction is not intgpged to

limit the distribution of this report, which, upon acceptance by the City of Denham Springs, Louisjgna, isa
matter of public record.

Respectfully submitted,
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CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR . YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Compliance Findings:

Finding 02-01:

During our testing of utility accounts receivable, it was noted that accounts over 90 days had jpcreased
substantially. Upon further investigation we determined that not all accounts, which had becgme two

months delinquent, and owed over $20 had been disconnected as required by the City’s Ordingpce. In

addition, we found no written authorization which would allow City employees an exceptigp to the
disconnect procedures. |

R ecommendation:

We recommend that the City abide by its Ordinance and disconnect utility services to those custonjgrs who
remain delinquent after two months. If for some reason the services are not disconnected, g written

authorization should be required from the Mayor documenting the reasons for the authorization.

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendation and in the future shall require the written authqgpjzation.
For those accounts that have remained past due, a demand letter has been sent to each customey.

Finding 02-02:

During our testing of the bid law requirements we noted the City had pu_rchased radio equipment for the
police department for approximately $40,000. The purchasing agent stated that bids were not req}}jrﬁd for
the purchase of telecommunication equipment therefore; no bid documentation was on file. Upap further

investigation we determined that this purchase would be subject to the bid process and therefore the City
had violated the bid law.

Recommendation:

We recommend that purchasing remain up to date with the changes in the laws concerjipg the

requirements for bid. Ifthere is any question as to whether the bid process is required, managemenf should
request opinion from legal counsel and put a copy with the invoice purchasing the asset.
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Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendation and will

utilize legal counsel when there is g guestion
concerning exemption to the requirements of the bid law. |

Finding 02-03:

During the course of our audit, the City’s attorney disclosed to us that he had been informed by the City
that an employee of the Street Department would remain on City time and then proceed to a Rart-time
janitorial job at another business and then come back to the City to complete his janitorial dutigg before
clocking out for the day. The supervisor would then sign his time card each payroll period. Upon
vestigation by the City’s attorney, it was determined that the time being approved by the sypervisor
appeared to be limited to those hours actually worked at the City and did not include the hours at fhe other
business. Thus the employee’s time card actually shows more hours worked than he was actugjjy paid.

Management reviewed all payroil records of the employee and the supervisor for the period under Qﬁﬂstipn
and has received reimbursements for any discrepancies found.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City continue to monitor its employees and monitor that all emplqyﬁﬁs are
clocking in and out appropriately. ‘

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendations. In addition, management suspended the Street egployee
from employment for two weeks, without pay and required teimbursement of $301.34 prior to refygning to
work for entering incorrect information on his time card and for receiving pay not earned. The Supgrvisor
was formally reprimanded for failure to make sure that all the time sheets of the employegs of his

department were correct prior to his signing his approval to each one. Finally, the City’s attoppgy has
informed the Legislative Auditor and the District Attorney of the 21% Judicial District of these tacts.

Finding 02-04:

During our audit we were informed that the City had reimbursed an employee $82.72 for refreshmepis fora
facial and cosmetics party. Upon our investigation there was a reimbursement for refreshments fgr what
management thought would be a morale booster for the women working at City Hall. The meeting getually
took place after hours on Friday June 21, 2002. Apparently it was not taken by the employeeg jn that

respect, as we were told only two employees attended. In any event, the putchase of refreshmgnts for
employees meetings using public funds is not appropriate.

Recommendation:

We recommend the City discontinue any practice of purchasing refreshments for employees’ mggfings.
4




Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendation.

Finding 02-03:

During the audit we became aware of an instance where the City paid the medical bills of two eqployees
who were supposedly exposed to conjunctivitis by the children of one of the City’s customepg during
working hours. The total medical bills paid were $260 and were approved by the City’s Treasypgr. The
explanation was that because it was under $500 the Treasurer decided it would be better to pay thg paedical
bills rather than file a workers compensation claim. We believe the payment of the invoice by the City

rather than by workers compensation is inappropriate. The spending of public funds where therg gppears
no legal obligation to do so is inappropriate.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City obtain reimbursement from the employees involved and that thg proper
worker compensation paperwork be filed. If the event actually should be reimbursed, then thg City’s
workers compensation policy will take care of the reimbursements.

Management’ s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendations.

Finding 02-06:

During the current audit, we attempted to determine if department heads were tracking and r-gpmting
personal mileage on vehicles assigned to them. A couple of years ago, the City had each departmgpt head
sign a statement that they were aware that no City vehicle may be used for personal business. Cygrently,
no effort to monitor any personal use of vehicles is in place. We noted no employees actually pgported
using a City vehicle for personal use. In attempting to test for any personal use, the City could nof graduce
adequate vehicle information to assist in determining any misuse. However we did note that the Gjfy was

charging the department heads $3/day and adding this amount to the employees’ W-2 to cover cogyputing
mileage as required by Internal Revenue Code Section 1.61-21 (f).

Recommendation:

We recommend the City formally adopt a written vehicle usage policy and design it such that. adequate
written information is required and available to be able to assist management in the monitoring of the

policy. Each employee stating that they have read and understand the policy should sign a ngw form
annually. |

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendations.
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Internal Control Findings:

Finding 02-07:

During our testing of certain construction contracts, equipment purchases and accounts payable for the year
ended June 30, 2002, we noted two instances in which invoices were actually paid twice by the Gity. The

City paid Nortrax South on August 16, 2001, check number 23022 in the amount of $62,234 and then paid
the mvoice again on October 22, 2001, check number 24040 in the amount 0f $62,234. The City gceived
a cash refund of the overpayment on November 14, 2001, in the amount of $62,234. In additic:rn; the City
paid Cajun Constructors, Inc. on July 5, 2002, check number 27578 in the amount of $33,650 and then paid
the application for payment again on July 26, 2002, check number 27808 also in the amount of $33,650.

The City received a cash refund of $33,650 on August 16, 2002. These duplicate payments segm to be
isolated incidences, but still should not have happened. |

Recommendation:

We recommend more care be taken when paying mvoices. Although the City was reimburseg for the
overpayments the City did not have use of those funds until the vendor repaid the overpayments. Had the

invoices been marked paid, with the date paid, check number, and account number, this error cqy]d have
been avoided.

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendations,

Finding 02-08:

During our testing of accumulated unpaid leave for the year ended June 30, 2002, we noted fpr one
employee tested that the supervisor had failed to sign the employees time card six times out of the twenty-
six pay periods. In addition, in testing the time cards of the Mayor’s assistant from July 1, 2001 to
December 1, 2002, we located all time cards and the employee had signed all, but sixteen capdg were

unsigned by the Mayor, his immediate supervisor. All other time cards pulled for our payroll traggaction
testing were signed by the employee and the supervisor.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the payroll department not prepare or release a payroll check without thg proper
employee signature and the proper supervisor’s signature.

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendation.




Finding 02-09:

During our testing of accumulated unpaid leave for the year ended June 30, 2002, we noteq that the

computation ot accumulated leave for the police officers is not being computed exactly the samg n egch

instance. When asked why this occurred, personnel told us the differences came about bgcgyse of
interpretation of the City’s policy.-

Recommendation:

We recomimend the City re-evaluate the personnel policies concerning employee benefits and accymmlated

leave. In addition, the policy should not be subject to interpretation, but should be able to be calcylated as
stated in the policy. |

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendation and expects to hire legal counsel having eXpgrtise in

personnel matters to review and recommend changes to the City’s personnel policies and prgeedures
manual.

Finding 02-10:

During our audit we tested the payroll of the personnel director from July 1, 2001, to December L, 2002.
We noted that the employee and her supetvisor had signed all applicable time cards. We also ngted that
during this time period all overtime had been approved by the City Treasurer. Explanationg for the

overtime were also included on the approved forms. However, numerous discrepancies were disggvered.
The discrepancies mcluded the following:

Small immaterial payroll calculation differences noted in three instances.

On at least eleven occasions the employee issued herself a manual check prior to the dgjg of the
regular payroll check issuance without proper authorization.

No payroll documentation and no supervisory approval for the issuance of check numhgr 9214

dated December 6, 2001, in the amount of $1,030.15. It seems that the employee paid herself
for 80 hours of earned comp time without proper approval.

No payroll documentation and no supervisory approval for the issuance of check numhgy 71805
dated June 28, 2002, in the amount of $3858.10 but not recorded until July 23, 2002. |j seems

this payment was an advance of payroll that was not reimbursed until December 6, 3(()2.

No payroll documentation and no supervisory approval for the issuance of check numhgy 73117
dated October 16, 2002, in the amount of $935.41 but not recorded until October 24, 2002,

In addition, we noted that although two employees had keys to the check signature machine, each ﬁmplﬂyae
knew the PIN number to use the machine and only one key was required to use the machine. Qpg of the
keys was in the possession of the personnel director. We noted that City policy was to have g gecond
employee review and sign the payroll register prior to the issuance of payroll checks. This step hgd been
bypassed all year. The City Accountant prepates the City’s bank reconciliations but was not gllowed
access to the actual payroll information by the personnel director. The personnel director would gjve the
City Accountant the information concerning payroll that was used to complete the bank reconcijjiations.
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Recommendation:

We recommend that management obtain reimbursement for all unauthorized payments and dggide the
proper disciplinary actions against the personnel director for all the abuses identified above. In gddition,
we recommend that the City separate the possession of the signature machine keys from the indjyiduals
with the knowledge of the PIN number to be used to operate the machine. The machine coulgd giso be
locked in a secure location within the City Treasurer’s office. He would not be in possession of g key or
have knowledge of the PIN number to use the machine. In this situation you would have to haye three
individuals involved in the writing and signing of payroll checks. We would also recommend thaf gnyone
involved with the payroll process be required to have their payroll check direct deposited ipto their
accounts. Finally, we recommend that the City abide by its pohcy to have that second employeg review
and sign the payroll register along with the personnel director, prior to the issuance of the payro]] checks.

At no time should the personnel director be allowed to assist in the preparatlon of the bank reconcjjjations.

A copy of this report is being submitted to the District Attc-rney of the 21* Judicial District of the §tate of
Louisiana.

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with our recommendation and plans to discuss with the City’s legal counsg] proper
disciplinary actions against the personnel director.

Finding 02-11:

During our detail testing of the personnel director’s time cards above, we noted that it 18 City gglicy to

allow the use of vacation time to make up for any time missed during the week, so that on dayg that an
employee may work over and or after hours, they will be paid overtime at 1 %2 times their regular pgy rate.

Upon discussing this issue with the City Treasurer, he stated that this 1s done by most all the emplayges and
is allowed by policy.

Recommendation;

We again recommend the City re-evaluate the personnel policies concerning employee bengfjfs and
accumulated leave.

Mana_gement’s Response:

Management concurs with the recommendation and expects to hire legal counsel having expggtise In

personnel matters to review and recommend changes to the City’s personne] policies and prgggdures
manual.
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Finding 02-12:

Upon analysis of cell phone usage during the year we noted that the City had no written policy capgrolling
the use of cell phones. No employee was designated to monitor the cell phone usage and that several
employees with cell phones substantially exceeded their allotted mmutes each month. It also segms that
personal calls are being made on these phones and are not being reimbursed to the City.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City review the needs of each cell phone in use by the employees and dgepment
the number of minutes that the employee should be allowed. The City should then develop g policy
concerning the use of City cell phones. The reasons for any cell phone usage over the allotted timg should

be documented 1n writing and signed by the employee and the City Treasurer. Personal cell phippe use,
over the allotted time should be reimbursed to the City at the cell phone program rate.

Because of the lack of monitoring during the year, we recommend that management make 3 detailed
analysis of all cell phone usage, beginning July 1, 2001. In addition, management should reviegy gl cell

phone invoices, and obtain reimbursement for personal minutes identified as exceeding the allotted pinutes
for the said employees’ cell phone plan. |

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with these recommendations and is currently in the process of analyzing these cell

phone invoices and will obtain reimbursements for personal calls exceeding the allotted minutes per plan
for said employees’ cell phone.




CITY OF DENHAM SPRINGS, LOUISIANA

MANAGEMENT LETTER

JUNE 30, 2002




Hannis [ Bourgeois [ [P

Certified Public Accountants

iand}]; JD Blgpr:czz? cg,;; 1175 Del Este Avenue, Suite B Members American Institute of

S . Kich _ * . ] ' '
Rnngie E 3:;{;;‘:;! éf}ﬁ# Dcnhﬂ.m SpI‘ll‘lgS, LA ?0726 Cﬂrtgffﬂd Pﬂbhﬂ Atfﬂuﬂtﬂﬂfﬁ
E . A K : -
5:;?1;:: P GHel::rg; chax p hﬂ“f?f- (1;2535 665-8257 2322 Tremont Drive, Suite 200
Monica L. Zump, CPA* Fax: (225) 667-3813 Baton Rouge, LA 70809
Ronald L. Gagnet, CPA*

Douglas J. Nelson, CPA*
Celeste D, Viator, CPAX
Russell 1, Resweber, CPA®

Laura E. Monroe, CPA*
*A Professional Accounting Corporation

September 17, 2002

The Mayor and Members of !
the City Council

City of Denham Springs

Denham Springs, Louisiana

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Denham Springs, |
Louisiana, for the year ended June 30, 2002, we considered its internal control in order to determine our

auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and not to
provide assurance on internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency. The following summarizes our comments and suggestions
regarding those matters. This letter does not affect our report dated September 17, 2002, on the basic
financial statements of the City of Denham Springs, Louisiana.

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS:

None.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:

Finding 00-1;

It was noted in the prior years and again in the current year that there is a lack of written policies and
procedures in the various cycles comprising the City’s accounting/finance function. Written policies
and procedures are essential to a strong internal control system and accounting department.

Recommendation;

We again recommend the City begin the task of evaluating the various cycles and developing written
policies and procedures for each cycle.
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Management’s Response:

The first step toward a policy and procedure manual has been implemented. The City of Denham
Springs sent out letters on January 15, 2002 to the Personnel Manager, City Accountant, the Tax
Collector, and the Utility Supervisor. All accounting cycles except for Personnel have been
documented. Personnel has started documenting its accounting cycles. The next step is to combine all

the documented accounting cycles into one policy and procedures manual. The completed policy and
procedures manual will be reviewed and updated periodically as needed.

Finding 00-5:

It was noted 1n the prior years and again in the current year that the mail is not being opened under dual
control and a daily cash receipts log 1s not being maintained at the time the mail is opened. |

Recommendation:

In an effort to greatly strengthen internal control in this area, we again recommend the daily mail
should be opened under dual control by two employees and at that time any checks/cash received |
should be documented on a cash receipts log. After all mail is opened, the cash receipts should be

submitted to the applicable department for processing. A copy of the daily log should also be sent with
the cash receipts log.

Management’s Response:

Presently mail is being distributed unopened to the proper departments. Utility payments are delivered
to the Utility Department, and other payments are distributed to the Tax Department for processing.
All other mail addressed to individual employees is delivered accordingly. To reduce the volume of
payments received management has implemented a lockbox to handle utility customer payment’s being
mailed to the City. The lockbox has significantly reduced the volume of payments being received
through the mail by the City. The City is currently evaluating the volume of mail being received to
determine the feasibility of implementing the opening of mail under the dual control of two employees.
Key to this implementation is the second employee assigned to the documentation of a cash receipts

log. Management is continuing to review which employee along with the mail clerk to assign to the
documentation of cash receipts log.

Finding 00-6:

In the utility billing department, it was noted in the prior years and again in the current year that there 1s
an overall lack of segregation of duties in that the same person who collects payments from customers
also posts the payments to the customer accounts. Generally, the ability to collect payments from a

customer and post the payment to the customers account by the same person is considered to be a
weakness in internal controls.
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RecUnImeEnu4ion:

We recommended the City reevaluate its procedures in the utility department to achie?e the maximum
amount of segregation of duties possible considering the limited number of employees. At no time
should individuals collecting payments be posting those payments to customer accounts. N

Management’s Response:

Management concurs with this recommendation but cannot justify the hiring of an additional personto
post customer accounts. Instead management is investing in a more efficient method of handling

customer payments and customer account postings and has implemented a lockbox system beginning
August 5, 2002, |

Finding 00-7:

As noted 1n the prior years and again in the current year, each department of the City continues to
collect and process cash receipts.

Recommendation:

We again recommend the City consider a “centralized” cash collection site for non-utility receipts to
help alleviate the lack of segregation of duties and make the cash collection process more efficient.

Management’s Response:

Management continues to evaluate the implementation of a “centralized” cash collection system in the
next fiscal year as further discussed in this letter. Management’s ability to consolidate the Police
Department bond payments is limited by the fact that bond payments must be remitted directly to the
Police Department because of their ability to receive bond payments 24 hours a day. Based on this fact, -
management has consolidated its cash receipts between three departments, the Police Department, the

Utility Department, and the Tax Department. By April 2003 the cash management software program
will be implemented for the Tax and Utility Department.

Finding 00-8:

In the prior years and again in the current year, we noted an overall lack of segregation of duties in that

the same person who prepares the daily deposit, posts to the general ledger and also reconciles the bank
statement. |

Recommendation:

We recommended the City reevaluate its procedures to achieve the maximum amount of segregation of
duties possible considering the limited number of employees.
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Corrective Action Taken:

Presently deposits are being made by the Utility and Tax Departments. The City Accountant handles
the manual posting of deposits to the general ledger. The City Accountant and the City Treasurer i
handle reconciling the monthly bank statements. Payroll checks are being reconciled through the City’s
software program. Management continues to evaluate the tools their personnel require to efficiently |
handle their duties. The implementation of the cash management program and the lockbox system as |
discussed in Finding 00-7 will go a long way to resolve internal control problems cited. |

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the |
internal control elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in |
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be a
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing thetr assigned functions. |

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal
control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable

conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, none of the
conditions described above is believed to be a material weakness.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already
discussed these comments and suggestions with the Treasurer and Finance Committee, and we will be

pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these
matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.

This report is intended for the use of management, and should not be used for any other purpose. This

restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which, upon acceptance by the City of
Denham Springs, Louisiana, 1s a matter of public record.

Respectfully submitted,
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